9 WATERLOO MORADA FIRE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

July 13, 2022 Regular Board Meeting @ 7:00 pm
6925 E. Foppiano Lane, Stockton, CA 95212
Teleconference Meeting/In Person

=
-
L

§

t
j

In Accordance to Governor Newsome’s Executive Order N-29-202 and AB361
If a member of the public is interested in attending by teleconference, contact fire
administration (209) 931-3107

AGENDA

1. CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL
1.1. Notice of meeting recorded.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

3. PRESENTATIONS:

4. IN THE MATTER OF PUBLIC DISCUSSION:
This time is provided to the public to address the Board of Directors on items not on the agenda.
State law prohibits the Board of Directors from taking action on these items. Each person will be
limited to no more than five minutes of discussion time and the total time allotted for discussion shall
not exceed thirty minutes.

DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS
5. LATE AGENDA ITEMS; Government Code Section 54954.2(b)2

6. CORRESPONDENCE
6.1. Resignation Letters
¢ Engineer Lebed
e Engineer Wicke

6.2. SJCCDD - PA-2000072 (SA,TE)
6.3. SJCCDD - PA-2200111 (IP)
7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
7.1, Board Meeting — June 8, 2022
8. FINANCIAL REPORTS:
8.1. Unpaid Bills by Vendor and Requisition # 1 Approval
8.2. Monthly Summary Report — Review / Discussion

9. OLD BUSINESS:

9.1. Station 2 Update

9.2. Station 1 Dorm Room - Update

9.3. AB361 Public Agency Virtual Meetings - Approval /Action
94, Negotiations — M.O.U. Ratification - Approval/Action

» Staff Report MOU Monetary ltems Disclosure
¢ Impact to SICERA from the WMFD Salary Agreement Actuarial Report

OQur Community...Our Priovity



10.

11.

12.

13.

NEW BUSINESS:

10.1 San Joaquin County Special Assessment Charge Agreement and Special
Assessment Rates for Tax Year 2022/2023

10.2 Croce, Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen- Agreement Letter for Audit Year 2021/2022

10.3 F&M Bank: Line of Credit or Construction/Business Loan Inquiry

REPORTS:

11.1. Member Reports:

11.2. Chief Report

11.3. Finance Committee:

(Board Members Ralph Lucchetti, Ryan Haggerty, Fire Administration, Tara Eastwood, Community
Member, Board President Clay Titus, Alternate)

CLOSED SESSION:

12.1 Pursuant to Government code Section 54957.6 Conference with Labor
Negotiator and Government code Section 54957.8 Labor Negotiations —
Unrepresented Employee

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/MEETINGS

13.1 Directors Open Discussion

14. ADJOURNMENT:



WATERLOO MORADA FIRE DISTRICT
6925 E Foppiano Lane

Stockton, CA 95212
(209) 931-3107

June 30, 2022

Dear Chief Walder,

Please accept this letter as my formal resignation from the position of Engineer at Waterloo Morada
Fire District, effective July 14", 2022,

My decision to leave Waterloo Morada has been accompanied by great ambivalence. | am truly
grateful for all that the administration and the membership has done for me over the years. After much
consideration, | have decided to further my career in the fire service with Cosumnes Fire Department.
My time spent with Waterloo Morada will always be something | cherish. | wish for nothing but success

and progress for the organization and my brothers and sisters in the future.

If | can be of any assistance during this transition, please st me know.

Sincerely,

S

Nathanie! Lebed

Our Communily... Owr Priority

[=m=aeas e = e S R WA pni, = e = —— LT e e ue v

e/



6./

Notice of Resignation
James Wicke
11715 N. Clements Rd
Linden, CA, 95236

July 1%, 2022

Waterloo Morada Fire District
6925 E. Foppiano Ln.
Stockton, CA 95212

Dear Chief Walder,

’m writing this notice to inform you of my intention to resign from my position as Engineer at Waterloo
Morada Fire District effective July 14t 2022.

I will forever be grateful to Waterloo Morada for giving me the opportunity to live out my dream of
working in the fire service. It has been an absolute pleasure working alongside the men and women of
this agency and will never forget nor neglect the personal and professional relationships | have made
during my time here. This has not been an easy decision for me and my family, as we have grown a deep
loyalty to this agency that will be hard to shake. However, | have been offered an opportunity that |
hope, in time, will allow me to provide a better life for my family financially and allow me to spend more
quality time with them. | hope | will be leaving Waterloo Morada in a better position than when | started
and wish all the best for this agency and all of its personnel in the future.

Please let me know how | can be of any further assistance during this resignation period.

Thank you,

litds

’jgmes Wicke

-7



b.2
SANJOAQUIN Community Development Department

COUNTY

Greatness grows here.

Planning - Building - Code Enforcement - Fire Prevention - GIS

APPLICATION REFERRAL.: Shortened Review Period:

Staff Review with Notice 2 week response time.

Project Planner: Alisa Goulart Phone: (209) 468-0222 Fax: (209) 468-3163 Email: alisa.goulart@sjgov.org

The following project has been filed with this Department: APPLICATION NUMBER: PA-2000072 (SA, TE)

PROPERTY OWNER: Blyden LP APPLICANT: IGRA Investments Inc.
3239 W. Ashlan Ave. Gurpartap Singh
Fresno, CA 93722 62 N. Sierra Madre St.

Mountain House, CA 95391

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: A 1-Year Time Extension for a previously approved Site Approval application to develop an
existing 4.55-acre lot in 2 phases over 4 years. Phase 1 to include a 5,940-square-foot convenience store and quick-serve
restaurant with drive-thru; a 4,323-square-foot carwash; a 5,335-square-foot canopy with 8 gas dispensers for
automobiles; and 2 canopies (1,386 square-feet each) with 8 gas dispensers for tractor-trailers. Phase 2 to include a 2,637-
square-fcot building to house a Starbucks coffee shop with drive-thru and a fast-food restaurant. (Use Type: Gasoline
Sales — Combination; Eating Establishment - Convenience). The business proposes to operate 24 hours per day, 7 days
perweek. The applicant is also proposing a modification to the sign ordinance to permit a pylon sign with a maximum
height of 100 feet and a maximum surface area of 300 square-feet, to be located on the northeast corner of the property.
The project will be served by the City of Stockton for sanitary sewer service and will utilize a private onsite well and onsite
stormwater retention pond.

The Property is zoned C-G (General Commercial) and the General Plan designation is C/G (General Commercial).

PROJECT LOCATION: The project site is located on the southwest corner of N. Wilson Way and E. McAllen Rd., Stockton.
(APN/Address: 132-020-22 / 4343 N. Wilscn Way, Stockton) (Supervisorial District: 4)

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION: This project as described is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) pursuant to Section 15061(b)(3), and a Notice of Exemption will be filed if the project is approved.

APPLICATION REVIEW: Recommendations and/or comments on this project must be submitted to the Community
Development Department no later than June 29, 2022. Recommendations and/or comments received after that date may
not be considered in staff's analysis.

AGENCY REFERRALS MAILED ON:  June 15, 2022

TO:

SJC Superviser: District 2 Caltrans — District 10 US Fish & Wildlife

SJC Building Division / Plan Check CA Highway Patrol Builders Exchange

SJC Environmental Health CA Regional Water Quality Control Board  Building Industry Association
SJC Fire Prevention Bureau Central Valley Flood Protection Board Buena Vista Rancheria

SJC Mosquito Abatement CA Fish & Wildlife Region: 2 California Valley Miwok Tribe
SJC Public Works CA Native American Heritage Commission California Tribal TANF Partnership
SJC Sheriff Communications Director Stockton East Water District North Valley Yokuts Tribe

City of Stockton PG&E, AT&T United Auburn Indian Community
Stockton Unified School District California Water Service Company Carpenters Union
Woaterloo-Morada Fire District Stockton Sewer Service Haley Flying Service

Air Pollution Control District Central California Traction Railroad Precissi Flying Service

San Joaquin Council of Governments  Federal Emergency Management Agency Sierra Club

1810 E Hazelton Avenue | Stockton, California 95205 | (209) 468-3121 | www.sjgov.org/commdev



BULDING DATA: , - HELAN
, [ELOCR TO AREA RATI: A

STRUCTURC ¢BC DCCUF,  TIPE GF GONST. AREA Je—— — BUILBING AREA

AR WASH I REGULAR 3PACES - xy OWNER
GROYS AREA o PSS ST (BRI S VA ACCESSILE SPACES epy BYDEN UHHTED PARTIERSHIP, A CALIFORNIA LIAITED PARTNERSH
SIMUETURE B g 4100 5. ACCESSOLE £, SPACES -3 3289 W, %{rz AV
CARWATH 4323.5F: AR/WNIER -y mwmmw@u 43772
SRUCRIRE 5 % CONVNIENCE STORE/GSRITOD) 5940 £¥, gl J.sh.._ﬁﬁ.ﬁu_u:aa:a e ot 23) 724-B010
STARBUGKS/ FAST FOCO 2,788 4R fr E e T R 1
ncsd.._nzﬁ«.ue DR DT VACULK SPAELS » 18 ENGINEER
STRRE/SEiFc) TU1AL AREA, OF LAMASCAVING: 443024 5 T E VA C SPACES -7 O & Smeie
s N o OSRRE r e PERGENTAGE OF R LANDSCARED: 22k TOTL - 7 SO AvaNUE
as Az vé PARKING D4TA:  PANKING RATIO PER GADSS:SF OF HLOG AND P PER EMPLOYEE. s — WL o Sy
k COUMUR AREA B v BULDING AREA- \ NOTES
AUTE FYENG CANORY' (HAS 15 FUELEIG POSITGNS)= it/a
STARBUCKS (PHASE 2) >._ v CAkwALH TRUCK M FUELNG. CANORY (HAS' ¥ FUELINO PGSITIONS mN/A 1. APNI]58=020
FAST FOQU (PHASE 2) A2 va STARRUCKS/ FAST FO00 THUCK #2 FUELING BANOPY (HAS J.FULLNU POSITIONS)= H/A « s;._._wmnvﬁ_ .Huﬁarﬁoq o
AULO" CANLPY " L) DICWALE PARKSC w gmr ARIVATE (PO
TRUCK CANCPY gt " ] ) i A g )
TRUCK CANDPY §2 u B y .n. 6 FLood uozm..ml.u.#w&r n»xu. CEOTICONE0F
S ¢ 7. ALL IMPROVEMENTS ARE DXSHNGAMESS ADTED.
4 & s . THERE ARE NO EXISTING STRUCTURES OH SITE,
{ o
RE L = 9. THERE:SIALE BE A 10° PERIMETER OF LANDSCAPING. MLONO

A * N PRDPERTY LINE ARUTING THE ROAD RIGHT GF WAY,

X .

14 Juk IMPROVEMENTY. SHALL OE IHIASE 1, EXCEPT THE. .
PRCPOSED 2,637 SF BUADING WHICH WAL BE PrASE. 4 Y0 BE
BULT IN YEAR 4,

Iy < | lllwﬂu”wl'n

i ne. 1y u oy -

-

e CXISTING. CONTOIR

PROFOSED ASPHALY CONCRETE

EXISTNG ASPHALT CONCRETE

100" Pylon |
Sign

PROPOSED CONGRETE

PROPOSED LANDSCAPING

EHISTNG THEE
AROPOSED FENCE

- PROPQSTD LIGHTPOLE
E¥, CVERHEAD UNF.

e EX. 0AS ‘UNE
—— e EX. CENTERUNE:

25 PROPOSED DA PATH-OF <TRAVEL.

— HRODOSED PHATE 3

L= = L L

oo A ' } fa|

# uoneo||ddy

N¥ e 218



6.3
SANJOAQUIN Community Development Department

COUNTY

Greatness grows here.

Planning - Building - Code Enforcement - Fire Prevention - GIS

APPLICATION REFERRAL: Short Review Period:

Staff Review 2 week response time

Project Planner: Alisa Goulart Phone: (209) 468-0222 Fax: (209) 468-3163 Email: alisa.goulart@sjgov.org

The following project has been filed with this Department: APPLICATION NUMBER: PA-2200111 (IP)

PROPERTY OWNER: Knapheide Manufacturing Co. APPLICANT: Pacific Construction
1848 Westphalia Strasse 4523 S. B Street
Quincy, 1L 62305 Stockton, CA 95206

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: A Site Improvement Plan application for the removal of 5 Native Oak Trees and the planting of
18 Native Oak Trees pursuant to Development Tittle Section 9-1 505.3(b). This is to fulfill a Condition of Approval for Site
Approval No. PA-2100052. The project site is not under a Williamson Act Contract

The Property is zoned I-L (Limited Industrial) and the General Plan designation is I/L (Limited Industrial).

PROJECT LOCATION: The project site is on the southeast corner of N. Bozzano Ln. and E. Hardaway Ln., Stockton.
(APN/Address: 101-290-07 & -09 / 2550 N. Bozzano Rd., Stockton) (Supervisorial District: 4)

APPLICATION REVIEW: Recommendations and/or comments on this project must be submitted to the Community
Development Department no later than June 23, 2022. Recommendations ard/or comments received after that date may
not be considered in staff's analysis.

AGENCY REFERRALS MAILED ON:  June 9, 2022

TO:

SJC Supervisor: District 4 SJC Public Works CA Fish & Wildlife Region: 2
SJC Assessor SJC SheriffCommunications Director Stockton East Water District
SJC Building Division / Plan Check Linden- Unified School District PG&E

SJC Environmental Health Waterloo Morada Fire District Haley Flying Service

SJC Fire Prevention Bureau Air Pollution Controf District Precissi Flying Service

SJC Mosquito Abatement San Joaquin Council of Governments Sierra Club

1810 E Hazelton Avenue | Stockton, California 95205 | (209)468-3121 | www.sjgov.org/commdev



00

AevEe

_ k NY1d NOILINOWIA

»

e
e sz
o e
s RN N

—_— e

s s

) Arcmn
Wy -t
o LT

iy prgmm
(2G04 5780

FAEVIARD LNV g
“coriins
WG W 9L
SHAINIING 4NG

8101 % £107 ue1D oM WD
£0%YL'EL 998 0d

- oo

(1veeA} pece; ouezzog Dy

2006230}
PROY DUBZZ0Z 05GE
arjexeq

51256 ¥ ‘NOLYIOLS
QYOH ONVZZO8 045¢

NOIMOOLS
SINIWIACHINI
ONIQTING ONY
ALIS FCITHAYNY

it}

TN TS WIS
TRCGIUY VLR DT

Py omted sin
s

o

] L TTTO0ETg e

Y05 JMAVED

Y- ROAD

(60" WIDTH - CURB TO CURB 44.7°)

-

YDV JOVLIH N TANVLANCAGIVY W 0 SR

VM IAE ) 2 NOSIRINL K9ViNGD {EhWuivELIO
NOUVAVI UEDCAR 30 SOMOINY M BV FRNGIIE
D6 U1 1Y 507 TIVHE RAULVMITICOS OHY NOLVSMRN 41

Yooy
ALTELN OMY SHOLIONG? BNILSYT A QT3 B1L MOLNULKE 08

BUNMN2ADNGN 103A0UY 1 O VEN| SNOE S0 HOU YT
Ol YDA RINOA THRGNOSSM A ThIE DIV 91

‘SNVI4 AU AT TN SIS NOIIDIT
MAMHSI KELGAR W1 351 AD CAI@ANTLI 39 QLAY SIDRT I
3204 318 NY LI D G310 TEUMAALO TATAN GIUTAUO M

3050 300 0IOM 0 LIND b L BTG LTI BRaSBBH 1TV b1

TUDN SRUISHIO SETHA THCHIN DO CL oY
SHOM O LK) . LA VI SeVIBTNY 1 GRY AL
D5 LNFNIAv B HIXE) SINZNBACHIN ZVIL T 2}

Cauos Lo
TN LY.LV AL DAAOPFAM L G331 DHISLERTTY 25

“ace NopLsnuIRNS
10 10HLIEO LAVIN OL NN T TIVHE DNIAYS WK 20
904 CLNEIQ 3u¥ ENOHLIONCE DNUUBIKY ITu OXALSUXT KUV
G ONEX 9 DAY EBIY DNLLAY L4 T L NOKIVIRYLIN LT
TS0GCRY HOAHVIA AJF VAT OL M43 M1 GBLL 0 MK
LCH 1 SUNINIADEM ALIUN QVICIONIOH BTS00 HUM
VO HOAIIOHD TN NOULNAVINS HOMEMS OLITIAYE Vi
g i
CEF40M UL 3 OIS 30y AN ORISR VLYY
S20N 1G4 OFR190C2 JACAAN Y20 TN G0N RSB
40 POLLOTELL LT TIN50 MV MO FASCCE LOBLCN T
BTAE ANV 40 501 00 THL MLV TIYK 0) TTIY YO
DSMOLE 36 Tiak G MOLLONNIENA W 0 ) WL v
HEVM AN ELS 308 4 AA DN SN0 Y U0 O €

(HLQIM NI S¥)
3NN avouTIvy

B4 30O 2
‘OTLDWOOUI YO BINYD ¥ L1320 TIHD HOLIVDIIAR DHAANS THY

o

TDNT TH 40 200490 ATIVOR) Gl THIENOST S1 LTS

1w SN esaVen
FTAI PR 0L GUNIID TIVHD XVCHA S0 1w 241 LK
ATV BV ST TN (IR 08 ALONAN DB TV

‘CRICH SEURLSHLO STIWEITALOLI0MA 10 TIVHS M5 0 LT
LI W ROTIIEL OV MK NTIST 1§ OGP T

OHLON A S YLDt W T
AP L5 DR L SUTTAN ONOGIIONN ORISR TIY

“SONIYAT TEIHE NO HICHR LKW T¥ KOO L1 THEUNAOONT
38 80 HOIM S3ILTHIN QRODUOUIONN [1D0F 0 HOLLVANTAG

G490 ATVUNDIY YO GEINALI1ANOD 1 M2 AL

ON ST Y0 WYIMDHS s HGAINON | 5300/ MR
CYCUGRION ALY TV VY VSN 0V

1238 U0 M43 X ITAOR(D4 ) Rl LN QNOUDRAINA AN
20 G113 OBV “BHOLIYOLREDG UNALNA "G34AL 21k IS
TN HOLLVAYIS TLOY ATWO (YL DUV 81wl TG
1 ASTURYOY ONLAIVA & SSUI0S AOMS UYL 293,
ASRUNS O21vUO0H0L ML NO WHOR TV SO TLIN DNNONENSEHA

PHILBIIG A0 BHLA30 M2V V0 SHOVI01 SaarL ML €

SOUBL T
Y T4 4 SV NI NS $NOLLYATYA RV SRRVIEI0 1Y

B a8

Aoy Ty ot
RN Y B VAW NI TR
UOLTALINGD TYAOHZ O MO WS
AL DO THLL Qv SLOU3Y LTROEY
T NI AN LON AN SRV AL
TV i SO GO

snorauryrona (2

39N olou (1)

— Ee

@ 30w

FHNONG OL LN YOXT CIY 313U 3 AT 5 B
JARNRRATRRAY)

e ane ¥END FL R

Awnsonae 1AV EIE A

INNAIDOOD o o e

e



AxA

NV ONLNY I

et o

200 S

ki i1
Irirs €3 e antone e (28

BIOT 92107081 J6G8M W'D
£OR5LEL 98 W0

6003210Y

(s23) puoy oupzz0g 0¥
10062108

Recy ouR2z0g 0550
arjsard:

1266 ¥O 'NOLXODLS
QVOH QNYZZOS8 0S5E

NOMDOLS
SININIACUINI
“ONIANG GNY

el

Pxay 1y 192 VN WA ST
R IO e

Ban

;.:é
QRS
AN ALWEdONd
wovsoim e
V9" JON34 M ——
MVAH QL 20834 (3 b

AHOA3H LSYORHY INY TVANIS
ONUNYIA 339 W1 ALH3JOHd INDIV HOVA VJVHO) 1IN0
M3 R C3O¥AJT 30 ThAS 3701 03NN {51 03A0HDN
36 01 300014 3 T4Y0 VN i TALNEOH ML 6

L0 ISRAORY il DNIAUTVE

57 OFSTSY STRU QOMAR 11
£ 40 dAL N1 SIS 1Y EINENINOLAI
AVIBONYI0E 3G DAAON3Y 38 D4 3L G

230 A1 TINO3HIS ONLLNY1d 335 ‘Z3HL YAVEOT STKTUINO MK

QNV 20TV W09 00T 14 S5 WLOL
A

$9303 IV
"o

VIS DeaINYMTI

#500r9 R NIOL 2l

T HoLLI 35V1A L TIVHE S1VMd OIS SAORIH O *

DMD0K0 AASYAN ON T3LNLLN DNILEI) 20 ONNGTNTD
BAIMOY IVHL SLNVIS LAY IO MLLO3RONY
gﬂﬁﬂmﬂu Hﬂguﬂ:moii

. oy
. 2301l 40 AL VIR T
~ A1 3601 9334 DOOMIH




SANSJOAQUIN Community Development Department

COUNTY

Greatness grows here.

Planning - Building - Code Enforcement - Fire Prevention - GIS

NOTICE OF SPECIAL PUBLIC HEARING
Before the
SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
SPECIAL LOCATION: San Joaquin County Administration Building
44 N. San Joaquin St., #640 (Board of Supervisors Chambers), Stockton, California

Thursday, July 21, 2022
SPECIAL TIME: 6 P.M.
SPECIAL HEARING INFORMATION:
The Board of Supervisors chambers will now be open to the public without restrictions. In addition, please
note that public participation is still permitted remotely by email (pcrecords@sjgov.ora) or by Microsoft
Teams (via computer and/or phone) as explained on the Community Development Department website and
public hearing notice. Please visit our Planning Commission page at hitps://sjgov.link/planning-commission
for the most current information regarding public participation.

All votes during the teleconference will be conducted by roll cali vote.

The following alternatives are available to members of the public to watch these hearings and provide
comments to the Planning Commission before and during the meeting:

PARTICIPATE:
Use Microsoft Teams via computer or mobile device at:

https://sjgov.link/planning-commission-hearing

Or by calling (209) 645-4071, Conference ID: 847 406 772#

Note: You are able to use either your phone or computer to participate. Please make sure to mute
your microphone upon logging in until the participation portion of the hearing is  announced. Please
note that the chat function of Microsoft Teams is not actively monitored and questions or comments
made using this function will not be considered part of the official record.

WATCH:
Live stream the Planning Commission meetings at:

https:llwww.voutube.com/channel/UCwQExATzZVnZibntMMA Anw

Note: Comments made on YouTube are not considered part of the official record and will not be
shared with the Planning Commission.

LISTEN:
Members of the public may listen to the hearing by calling (209) 468-0750.

Note: Please mute phone after calling in. This number does not allow for public participation.

PUBLIC COMMENT:

Public Comments, limited to 250 words or less, may be submitted by sending an email to
pcrecords@sjgov.org. Emailed public comments are limited to 250 words or less. If they are received
before or during the hearing they will be read into the record. Emailed comments regarding a specific
agendized item should include the application number in the subject line. Emailed comments received prior
to the close of the public hearing will be included in the official record on file with the Planning Commission.
Comments made on YouTube are not considered part of the official record and will not be provided
to the Planning Commission. If you need disability-related modification or accommodation in order to
participate in this hearing, please contact the Community Development Department at (209) 468-3121 at least
48 hours prior to the start of the meeting.

1810 E. Hazelton Avenue | Stockton, California 95205 | (209)468-3121 | www.sjgov.org/commdev



PROJECT:

USE PERMIT NO. PA-2100164 AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT NO. PA-2200028 OF JIANG’S
PROPERTIES MANAGEMENT, LLC (C/O JKL Sunshine, Inc.) for a commercial cannabis cultivation and
distribution facility. The project proposes to convert an existing 7,000-square-foot building; a 13,200-
square-foot building; and a 3,930-square-foot building for indoor cannabis cultivation: and convert a 4,720-
square-foot building for cannabis distribution. The project site is located on the south side of E. Navone
Rd.; 3,390 feet south of E. Fairchild Ln., Stockton (Supervisorial District: 4)

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW OF PROJECT:

Environmental Determination: A Mitigated Negative Declaration for this project has been prepared and is
proposed for adoption.
PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURES:

The following is a brief explanation of Planning Commission hearings. For hearings with large agendas, or
if an item is particularly controversial, the time limits noted below may be applied by the Chair:

Staff report and recommendation are presented.

Applicant may provide oral (limited to 20 minutes) or written testimony.

Other project proponents may provide testimony via Microsoft Teams (limited to 5 minutes) or email
to pcrecords@sjgov.org (limited to 250 words). Emailed comments received in support of the project
will be read into the record.

e Project opponents may provide testimony via Microsoft Teams (limited to 5 minutes) or email to
pcrecords@sjgov.org (limited to 250 words). Emailed comments received in opposition of the
project will be read into the record.

e Applicant may provide a rebuttal (limited to 10 minutes).

Time limits do not apply to responses to questions from Planning Commissioners or staff.
Chair will close the public hearing and bring the matter back to the Planning Commission for
discussion and decision.

Jennifer Jolley, Interim Director
San Joaquin County
Community Development Department



oM

Board of Directors
June 8, 2022, Regular Board Meeting @ 7:00 pm
6925 E. Foppiano Lane, Stockton CA 95212
Teleconference Meeting/in Person Hybrid
In Accordance to Governor Newsome’s Executive Order N-29-20 and AB361
If a member of the public is interested in attending by teleconference, contact fire administration (209) 931-310

Meeting Called to Order —7:00 pm

Announcement of Meeting Recorded

Roll Calll Members Present: Clay Titus, Ralph Lucchetti and John Baker

Present via Teleconference: Ryan Haggerty and Ryan Gresham

Also Present are: Chief Walder, Admin. Secretary Yolanda Palermo and BC Byous

Pledge of Allegiance: Ralph Lucchetti

Presentations:

IN THE MATTER OF PUBLIC DISCUSSION: This time is provided to the public to address the

Board of Directors on items not on the agenda. State law prohibits the Board of Directors from taking action on
these items. Each person will be limited to no more than five minutes of discussion time and the total time allotted
for discussion shall not exceed thirty minutes.

Late Agenda Items; Government Code Section 54954.2(b) 2

6.5 PA 2200030 (GP) and PA2200031 (ZR)

9.4.1 SICERA Letter — Actuarial Analysis

Correspondence

6.1 SJCCD Application # PA 200098(LA) Lot Line adjustment, Canepa Rd. and Hildreth Ln.

6.2 SICCD Application # 1900197 (SA, TE) Extension Application Auto Auctions, Newton Rd and Cherokee Rd
6.3 SJCCD Application # 1900286 (SA, TE) Extension Application Truck Leasing and Sales, Cherokee Rd.

at Wilcox.

6.4 SICCD Application # PA-2100164 (UP) and PA-2200028 (DA} Commercial Cannabis cultivation & distribution
Facility, E. Navone Rd and south of E. Fairchild Ln.

6.5 SJCCD Application # PA-2200030(GP) and PA-2200031 (ZR) General Plan Amendment and change Zone
Reclassification, Eight Mile Rd and N. Micke Grove Rd.

Approval of Minutes:

7.1 Board Meeting May 11, 2022

7.2 Special Board Meeting on May 23, 2022

Motion to approve minutes from May 11 and May 23, 2022 by John Baker

Second: Ralph Lucchetti Roll Call Vote: 3 Approve / 0 Abstain / 2 Absent (Gresham and Haggerty)

Financial Reports:

8.1 Unpaid Bills by Vendor and Requisition # 12

Motion to approve bills by Ralph Lucchetti

Second: John Baker Roll Call Vote: 3 Approve/ 0 Abstain / 2 Absent (Gresham and Haggerty)
8.2 Monthly Summary Report — Reviewed

Old Business:
9.1 Station 2 Update
» Director Baker abated weeds at Station 2, for the second time
e Metal Building was delivered on June 13, 2022
9.2 Station 1 Dorm Room Update
e June 13, 2022 work will start in Dorm Rooms, this will take approximately 5 weeks to complete
o Board will meet in Apparatus Bay for July 13 meeting.

1



7.1
June 8, 2022

9.3 AB361 Public Agency Virtual Meetings — John Baker made motion to continue to AB361
Second: Ralph Lucchetti Roll Call Vote: 3 Approve / 0 Abstain 2 Absent {Gresham and Haggerty)
9.4 Negotiations Update:
o Submitted salary increase to SICERA
o Pay out for Vacation and SLB ( Sick Leave Bank ) is under review with Legal
9.4.1 SJCERA Letter from Cheiron, Re: Impact to SICERA from the WMFD Salary Agreement

10. New Business:
10.1 Resolution N. 22-06 / Adopting Expenditure Limitations for F.Y 2022-2023
Motion to approve adopt Resolution No. 22-06 by John Baker
Second: Ralph Lucchetti Roll Cail Vote: 3 Approve / 0 Abstain / 2 Absent (Gresham and Haggerty)
10.2 Preliminary Budget Fiscal Year 2022-2023
Motion to approve Preliminary Budget for F.Y. 22/23 by John Baker
Second: Ralph Lucchetti Roll Call Vote: 3 Approve / 0 Abstain / 2 Absent (Gresham and Haggerty)

11. Reports:
11.1 Member Reports:
11.2 Chief Reports:
e 260 Calls, YTD 1107 / Homeless Related Calls 64
* Increase in grass fires, Brush Unit (BR15-1) responded to 70 calls
Training: Strike Team, Wildiand and Overhead OES training is complete- Red Cards issued
BC Byous working diligently on the Active Shooter Regional agency drill
Prevention / Public Education: Weed Abatement in progress, Vegetation Management Program
will take place on June 20t and 21st
Apparatus: OES 4122 is out of service at OES shop — annual maintenance
Administration: Retired Chief Henry was recognized along with numerous other County Chiefs
Two Firefighters have been given conditional job offers.
SJCERA sent nofification of a debit against our account for a retiree’s Medicare part B. Yolanda is
working to resolve this with SICERA, as district has already settied with refirees.
Chief Walder has been elected President of the County Chiefs

12. Closed Session: 8:11 pm
12.1 Pursuant to Government code Section 54957.6 Conference with Labor Negotiator
and Government code Section 54957.8 Labor Negotiations — Unrepresented Employee
Open: 8:28 pm — No Report from Closed Session

Meeting Adjourned: 8:30 pm

Board of Director
Waterloo Morada Fire District



8.

8:32 AM Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire Protection District
07/11/22 Unpaid Bills by Vendor
All Transactions
Type Date B Num Due Date ~ Open Balance

Akerland Technology Solutions

Bill 7/5/2022 7111/2022 o 419.9_2
Total Akerland Technology Solutions 419.92
Alhambra

Bill 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 21481
Total Alhambra 274.61
AT&T - CALNET 3

Bill 7/5/2022 7111/2022 - 109.09 lr_/—_—
Total AT&T - CALNET 3 109.09
AT&T Regular

Bill 7/6/2022 7/11/2022 o 78.92 =/
Total AT&T Regular 78.9
Baker, John

Bill 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 - _200.00 %
Total Baker, John 200.00
Brannon Tire

Bill 7/5/2022 7/5/2022 126428 /ﬁ(//
Total Brannon Tire 1,264.28

California Choice

Bil 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 _ 18,639.96 /ff/

Total California Choice 18,639.96

California Waste Recovery Systems
Bill 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 - 312.W
Total California Waste Recovery Systems 312.0

California Waste Recovery*

Biil 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 291.95
Total California Waste Recovery* - 559_5
CCT Telecommum‘cations, Inc.

Bill 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 200.00
Total CCT Telecommunications, Inc. - _20_05)

DeHart Plumbing, Heating & Air Inc.

Bill 7/5/2022 7111/2022 319,00 ﬁd—\

Total DeHart Plumbing, Heating & Air inc. 319.00
DelLage Landen Financial Services, Inc.

Bill 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 - 107.10
Total DeLage Landen Financial Services, Inc. 107.10
Delta Dental Client Services

Bill 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 2,356,189 /Jf‘/—
Total Delta Dental Client Services 2,356.19
Diede Construction, inc

Bill 7/5/2022 7M11/2022 - 23,274.67 %'//
Total Diede Construction, Inc 23,274.67
Diesel Performance, Inc.

Bill 7/5/12022 7/11/2022 _ barg7 /ﬁy”/
Total Diesel Performance, Inc. 647.87

Fire Agencies Insurance Risk Authority
Bill 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 B 53,601.00
Total Fire Agencies Insurance Risk Authority 63,601.00

Fire Agencies Self Insurance System
Bill 7/5/2022 7M1/2022 _ 47113200 /%

Total Fire Agencies Self Insurance System 47,132.00
Page 1



8:32 AM
07/11/22

9.1
Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire Protection District
Unpaid Bills by Vendor

All Transactions

Type Date Num - Due Date Open Balance
Firefighters of San Joaquin / Local 1243
Bill 7/5/2022 7M1/2022 830.88
Total Firefighters of San Joaquin / Local 1243 830.88
Flyers
Bill 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 1 ,480.6%/‘
Total Flyers 1,480.6
Gresham, Ryan
Bil 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 B 150.00 (é‘./'
Total Gresham, Ryan 150.00
Haggerty, Ryan
- Bill 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 150.00 /‘ia'/
Total Haggerty, Ryan 150.00
Hi-Tech Emergency Vehicle Service, Inc.
Bill 7/5/2022 71172022 13,618.31 é)’_
Total Hi-Tech Emergency Vehicle Service, Inc. 13,618.31
Hunt & Sons, Inc
Bill 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 _ 3,558.69 ﬁ/
Total Hunt & Sons, Inc 3,558.69
Joint Radio User Group
Bill 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 7122447
Total Joint Radio User Group 7,224.47
Kingsley Bogard LLP
Bill 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 1,864.50
Total Kingsley Bogard LLP 1,864.50
Life-Assist, Inc.
Bill 7/5/2022 7111/2022 1,242.57 é/-
Total Life-Assist, Inc. 1,242.57
Lucchetti, Ralph
Bill 7/5/2022 711112022 200.00 (if‘
Total Lucchetti, Raiph 200.00
Mission Linen Supply
Bill 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 222.29 M
Total Mission Linen Supply 2222
Net Duty Software, Gallatinweb, LLC
Bill 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 B 1,601.76 [i{/
Total Net Duty Software, Gallatinweb, LLC 1,601.76
O'Reillys Auto Parts
Bill 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 5263 {//f
Total O'Reillys Auto Parts 52.63
Pacific Gas & Electric Co.
Bill 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 1,821.26
Bill 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 320944
Total Pacific Gas & Electric Co. 2,150.70
Pacific Records Management
Bil 7/11/2022 7/11/2022 66.60
Total Pacific Records Management 66.6
Pathian Administrators
Bill 7/5/2022 7111/2022 187.65
Total Pathian Administrators 187.65

Page 2



3.

8:32 AM Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire Protection District
07111722 Unpaid Bills by Vendor

All Transactions

Type Date Num Due Date _ Open Balance

San Joaquin County Assessor

Bill 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 - 691.19 /

Total San Joaquin County Assessor 691.19
Terminix international
Bill 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 111.00 /g/
Total Terminix International 111.00
Titus, Clay
Bill 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 200.00 /
Total Titus, Clay 200.00
U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System
Bilt 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 - 3,189.47 M
Total U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System 3,189.47
WMFF Association
Bill 7/5/2022 7/11/2022 360.00 %
Total WMFF Association 360.00
TOTAL 188,381.91

Page 3



Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire Protection District
Register: Unrestricted-Undesignated: 101 - F & M Checking-General
From 06/09/2022 through 07/11/2022
Sorted by: Date, Type, Number/Ref

Date Number  Payee ~ Account Memo Payment C Deposit
06/15/2022 Unrestricted-Undesign...  Funds Transfer... X 96,088.00
06/20/2022 7528 Akerland Technolog... 2000 - *Accounts Paya... Invoice 1424 309.92 X
06/20/2022 7529 Business Office Syst... 2000 - *Accounts Paya... C001345 218.68
06/20/2022 7530 Comcast 2000 - *Accounts Paya... 815560068045... 15340 X
06/20/2022 7531 Comcast* 2000 - *Accounts Paya... 815560068080... 167.13 X
06/20/2022 7532 The Record 2000 - *Accounts Paya... 27513 170.28 X
06/21/2022 7533 Kesselman, John * 2000 - *Accounts Paya... Reimbursement 53.02
06/28/2022 7534 Hunt & Sons, Inc 2000 - *Accounts Paya... 28393 4,519.77
06/28/2022 7535 Pacific Gas & Electri... 2000 - *Accounts Paya... 8928861230-5 60.26
06/28/2022 7536 TRI Air Testing 2000 - *Accounts Paya... Invoice 010330... 211.00
06/30/2022 450 - Interest-Checking  Interest X 1.31
I 5Lp3.4p
e D [
0-x
20990+
21868+
15340+
16715+
17028+
5300+
L5197 7+
6026+
21100+

Page 1

3.

7/11/2022 3:47 PM

009

Balance

120,238.71
119,928.79
119,710.11
119,556.71
119,389.58
119,219.30
119,166.28
114,646.51
114,586.25
114,375.25
114,376.56



:panoiddy

:pancaddy
LE'SYT'V6TS V.10L T0L6Y ‘|e10)
Bunsapy 01 u0ud 'pd sipg ZTZS6 VD ‘uopols PLISIF U310
SaJnyipuadx] |esauan 9v'€98'SS 0000008€C9-TOL6Y aue1 ouelddod '3 5769 dll4 BPRIOIN 00pBIEM
T0L6Y : [e10L
Moday |1e32q s)jig predun 21256 VI ‘uopjoors 121181g uonIlold
S3Jn)ipuadxy |esauss T6'T8E88TS 0000008€Z9-T0L6¥ aueq ouelddoy '3 5769 314 epe.oj oopiaiem
NOILdI¥)S3qQ MAIHD INNOWY 130V aNn4d ss3yaav 318VAVYd
S10°a1ywm@owlajedA
J3plem a3 Jaiyo
21256 VD ‘uopols
sueT oueiddod '3 5z60
11ISIQ 3Jl4 epesojy oopIeM TZOT'ET AInr : uo piay
1'8 T # uonsinbay Buneayy pieog 1e panosddy




Waterloo Morada Fire District Monthly Summary Report 2022-23 Summary
.2

Budget Year Left 97% Todays Date 7/12/22

General Budget Reserve / % Bal Left of

EXPENDITURES - General Amt Restricted Total Budget Balance Total Budget
510 SALARIES - REGULAR/A13-15, A2Q $ 1,539,802 $ 1,539,802 $ 1,476,016 96%
512 SALARIES - OVERTIME- FLSA-ATO ) 302,266 S 302,266 $288,022 95%
515 SALARIES - EXTRA HELP - PART TIME $ 42,019 $ 42,019 $40,450 96%
sico RETIREMENT - EMPLOYER SHARE $ 1,335,726 $ 1,335,726 $1,287,115 96%
530-534 INSURANCE - MEDICAL, DENTAL $ 275,769 $ 275,769 $254,773 92%
542 SJCO PAYROLL OTHER EXPENSES S 261,725 s 261,725 $214,593 82%
546 VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT
542 FUEL $ 60,749 S 4251 $ 65,000 $ 64,891 100%
546 FIREFIGHTING TOOLS/EXTRICATION $ 6,525 S 6525 $§ 6525.00 100%
547 RADIOS $ 4,000 $ 4,000 $ 4,000 100%
549 SCBA S 8,300 $ 8300 § 8,300 100%
550 HOSE & NOZZLES $ 1,300 S 1,300 100%
552 EQUIPT MAINTENANCE $ 6,000 [ 6,000 $ 6,000 100%
553 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE S 30,000 $ 30,000 $ 13,649 45%
Repair $ =
Maintenance $ -
541 APPARATUS REPLACEMENT PROG./PAYMENTS ~ § 151,049 $ 108,106 $ 259,155 § 259,155 100%
554 EQUIPMENT CAPITOL OUTLAY $ -
616 CLOTHING - SAFETY $ 17,400 $ 17,400 $ 16,097 93%
.......
561 BUILDING MAINTENANCE $ 18,900 $ 18,900 $18,539 98%
562 REPAIR OFFICE/LIVING QUARTERS S 2,500 $ 2,500 $2,500 100%
564 OFFICE FURNITURE $ 2,500 $ 2,500 $2,500 100%
569 BUILDING & GROUND CONTINGENCIES s - $30,659
570 STATION / PROPERTY CAPITOL OUTLAY $ 190,000 $ 75,000 $ 265,000 $ 241,725.33 91%
SUPPLIES
601 OFFICE EQUIPMENT $ 2,000 $ 2,000 $ 2,000 100%
602 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT S 14,632 $ 14,632 § 14,632 100%
603 ANNUAL SERVICE CONTRACTS $ 21,277 s 21,277 $ 21,277 100%
606 OFFICE SUPPLIES $ 5,200 $ 5,200 $ 4,560 88%
607 POSTAGE $ 1,315 $ 1,315 § 1,315 100%
608 STATION SUPPLIES-CLEAN/MAINT $ 6,000 $ 6,000 $ 5,992 100%
61 MEDICAL SUPPLIES/EQUIPMENT $ 31,400 $ 31,400 $ 10,645 34%
UTILITIES - ELEC/ GAS/ WATER/GARBAGE/TEL-
625 INT S 46,145 $ 46,145 % 43,430 94%
633 FOOD / WATER $ 8,000 $ 8,000 S 7,453 93%
635 FIREFIGHTING FOAM $ 2,500 $ 2,500 $ 1,647 66%
636 SUPPLIES - CONTINGENCIES $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 100%
SERVICES $ .
657 DISPATCHING S 80,000 $ 80,000 $ 72,776 91%
658 COMPUTER SUPPORT $ 5,200 $ 5200 $ 4,780 92%
665 PHYSICAL EXAMS/EMT RECERT $ 5,200 $ 5200 $ 5,200 100%
670 FIRE PREVENTION/PUBLIC EDUCATION $ 3,500 $ 3,500 $ 3,500 100%
675 EMPLOYEE TRAINING $ 6,197 $ 13,703 $ 19,900 $ 19,749 99%
679-1 MEMBERSHIP & CONFERENCES $ 12,710 $ 12,710 $ 12,335 97%
690 SERVICE CONTINGENCY $ 1,150 $ 1,150 $ 1,150 100%
652-56 OUTSIDE SERVICES S 130,686 $ 130,686 $76,394 58%
676-80 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES S 31,000 $ 21,100 $ 52,100 $ 50,236 96%




Waterloo Morada Fire District Monthly Summary Report 2022-23

Balance Sheet Last Month Current Change
100 General Account- SJ County S 769,247 § 321,639 § 447,608
101 Operating Funds - F&M Checking s 26,594 § 119,990 $ (93,396)
103 Operating Reserves / SJ County $ 8446 S 9221 S (775)
106 Operating Reserves/F&M Bank S 1,304,465 $ 1,203,098 $ 101,367
*Apparatus Replacement
*Capital Improvements/New Station Const.
Sum of 103 and 106 $ 1,212,319
Long Term Liability | BegBal Uability Paid  Balance |
7/12/2022 SICERA Sick Leave Bank ) 230,000 $ 24548 S 205,452
Station 2 Property S 536,250 S 86,521 $ 449,729
2018 Type 1 ( Hi-Tech ) S 626,281 S 447,343 S 178,938
2018 Type 3 ( BME) $ 377,170 $ 269,408 $ 107,762
2020 Type 1 ( E-2) S 648,978 $ 115803 $ 533,175
Final Budget Status | Budget amt Balance % Bal Left
Current Status of Budget $ 4,668,142
Restricted Revenue of Budget S 225,660
Total Budget $ 4,893,802 $2,596,880 94%
Est.
Revenue Status Budget Amt Restricted Balance % Bal
7/12/2022 Revenues Received S 0
GRANT
Interest -Operating Reserve F&M
Property Tax Secured - SB813 $ 1,360 S -
Property Tax Current Secured $ 1,959,244 $ -
Praperty Tax Current Unsecured S 96,275 S -
Property Tax Unsecured-Prior $ 2,448 S -
SB813 Supplemental S 101,426 S -
§B813 Prior Supplemental $ 300 $ -
Special Assessment (1986 ) 803,365.00 $ -
Special Assessment { Measure N ) 1,624,252.00 $ -
ST-Homeowners Property Tax 11,416.00 S -
Fees for Service { Inspection-Permits) $ 30,000
Impact Mitigation S 2,700
Outlawed Warrants/Miscellaneous
Fire Recovery S 6,000
Rebates,Refunds / Fuel Tax Refund
Cost Reimbursement-Workers Comp
OES Reimbursement $ 350,000
Employee Union /Assn Dues Reimbursed S 15,482
Total Income $ 4615568 $ 388,700 S - $0.00

Summary



2022 - 2024

Memorandum of Understanding
BETWEEN

Waterloo Morada
Rural County Fire Protection Fire District

&
Firefighters of San Joaquin County

Local 1243
International Association of Firefighters

07/13/2022

9.4




ii|Page



Contents

PREAMBLE .......oosiooreretneecses s ssesssssssssessss st essosoes e eseee oo oo ee oo 1
ARTICLE Lottt nessssssssssssessnsses e seseseseeee s oo ooeee oo eesee e 1
RECOGNITION ......coovtvotivivrirssssessecessseessssssssssssesssseesemsessseesssssseeeesseeooos oo oo 1
ARTICLE TT oot nsssnsseneceneestsssssssssssssesssneesseesseees st oeeee oo eosoeeeo . 1
RIGHT TO ORGANIZE........ovvososmveeecccereesssssssssseseessssoseeesssesssosseeees oo oo oseeseee . 1
12202 RIOR €21 50 8 (€35 1 p O 1
UNIT RECOGNITION .....oovvverrrescsssssssassssssseeeessessssesssssssseeeeessooooeeooseoesessseeoeee oo 2
ARTICLE HLoviiooon s snesssssssssesesesssesseeee st oo oooees e 2
DISTRICT RIGHTS ....ccoooccrrrrmerrnsssscemeeeesesssssssseersssseesssessoeeessesseeess oo ooeeeesesoeee oo 2
ARTICLE TV oot ssssssses e msssseseseeeee et s eeeeeoe . 3
STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS ....oooooveeeeccvssmseeeesesressssossesssmesseesseseeessssessoooosese oo 3
ARTICLE Vot asses s ssssees s ssssss et oe s oo ee oo 3
DISCRIMINATION ...ovcovsitvvrrrrsssmmmssessscesssssassisssemsesssssssmmseessssssessessssssseesssssoeeeessesseese e 3
ARTICLE Voot sitiess e ssss e ssses s es e see 3
UNION BUSINESS.......ccccooirrmsesmmunnsenreeosmsssssessssssssssssissmseesosssessssssssssssesssssooseeessssssee e 3
6.1 UNION BUSINESS .......ooeecceeeerssssssssssessssseeesessesssssssssmessessssseeesseseeess oo 3

6.2 DUES DEDUCTION .....covvvvvmtmmiceeeeesmsmmmsanensesssseeeeeeeesssssssssesssosssssesoosoeoeooeoseoeeeee 3
ARTICLE VI ...t scinessssssssessssmenseesesssssessssseesssoeeesosseseeseesssseoeee . 4
PREVAILING BENEFITS .....ooovsssivrrereeecesssscsesesssensessssomesseessssssssssee oo ooooeeeessssesee e 4
ARTECLE VIHL...o..oooooiooiciriesssiseeee e cosesisessssssssssseseseessesssssssssseesesoseee oo oo s oo 4
SCOPE OF REPRESENTATION .......ccococeeccervrnnesasssosemsesessssoessss s oooooeesoeoseoeeo . 4
ARTICLE IX ittt isssee e aeisses s sssnseees et eeessse e ee oo ooooeeseeoeeeeeeee .. 4
RULES AND REGULATIONS ........ocovvemsesseesussseeneeseesseeseesssssseeeesoesooooeesoeooeoseooooe 4
ARTECLE X st mssee s eeesses s sseness s see e seesee oo oooeeeeeseseeoee e ... 4
10.ISALARIES......c.ooiiiiiiiiiiitee e 4

10.2 OUT OF GRADE COMPENSATION .....cvcvvvvveeeeeeeeeeseeseesoeooeoooooooooooooooooooooooooo 4
ARTICLE X .ooooooooitiesess st essssssssssssesssssesmsesssseesssssoeee e oo seo oo oeeee . 5
BENEFITS ottt nsessss s seeeess e seess e oo eseesoeee 5
11.1 ACCUMULATED TIME OFF (ATO)....ooovueeuuueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeoeeooooooooooeoooooooooooo 5

112 HEALTH CARE BENEFITS ......ommmmmmmeeeeeeeeseessesccroe oo 6

113 VACATION ..ottt seesess s ssstssssomeseeseeseeesessssseeeee oo eeee oo 7

114 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE .....ccoooostmmmremrirmrmmeeeeeesseesseoscooseoooooooooooooeooooooeooo 8



115 FAMILY ILLNESS ......oovooooeveesseeeeesssnesnsssssosneeeesesssomsssssssesosssssssseessssessesseseees 8
116 SICK LEAVE .covvoosvvvvsssssssssosessesesssmssessssomsessssessssesssess s esesessmessesees s 8
1.7  BEREAVEMENT LEAVE
118 MATERNITY LEAVE
119 CATASTROPHIC LEAVE
11.10  JURY DUTY
11.11  RETIREMENT
11.12  DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN
ARTICLE XI1 .ccocccvvvrrosnmsssssssssssssssssssessssessssosssnesssssssessssssssessesesessesesrssssesessssssssssssoes
11016767 ) (0)37-N DRSO
12.1  INCENTIVE
122 TRAINING
ARTICLE XTIL........ooossoeeroenessseressssoesssoesessnrssssssesssne
WORKING CONDITIONS '
131  WORK SCHEDULE
13.1.1 WORK PERIOD....................
132 OVERTIME......z
132.1 OVERTIME PAY:...yurernee BN ..
1322 COMPENSATORY TIME: ¥,. ..... et 15
13:3 7 MINIMUM DAILY’ STAFFING% ........................................................................... 16
133.1 MININUM DISTRICT Va1 5, 16
CI34  SHIFTSCHEDULES oot 17
134.1 TEMPORARY ASSIGNMENT TO 40 HOUR WEEK SCHEDULE................. 17
1355, JOBDESCRIPTIONS ...ttt ss st 17
136, “STEP ADVANCEMENT ....oc.cocosoroesese sttt 17
137 APPENDAGE ..oooc.ooceoeeesossesessnes s esesesessessessses e seesessesses s 17
138 SAFETY EQUIPMENT ....ooocccoeeoreessesssseeessessomesesssesessmressssssssseseeemesesesens 18
139 CERTIFICATION/ LICENSE REIMBURSEMENT.............ccsvveeirsrerra . 18
1310 SHIFT TRADE w..cvvvoooooeeveeoseeeeessssssssoesssssossesssneessesesessssssesesssseessmeesssssseee 18
13.11  LEAVE OF ABSENCE ......ooooecoorecossessssssssssessseeesssseeessseeeserssssrssseesessessneens 18
ARTICLE XTIV ...ooooocevrersmsessessssssssesssssssssssessssossssssessesesssssssoesssessessessrseseseessesssssssssne o 19
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE.........coccceresveeseees oo sesscnsesessimessosssssessresseesssessssssssss e 19
DEFINITIONS...cccocevcreeseseessseserssssssssssesssseesssessssssseessssomesessessnessossseseesesessessesseeseeseeoe 19
170 B TOAESS VNP4 31 Y1 21 OO 19
PURPOSE w..cccvvevtermeresssssessssssssssessssssssssoesssssssssssessesssesssseseeessssssesssssessssssses oo 19




GRIEVANCE PROCESSING.......ccoecenititirrrsissceeeeesseeessseesssssss s esssseosseseeseeeeeeeeseseeeo.. 19
ARTICLE XTIV ccooteittnciaceettss s sa s ssessesss s ssesssssessssss s e eeee s s s essoe 20
STAFF REDUCTION PROCEDURE..........cvureeecceeeereeeseseesseeeseseeeseossseessee e oo esesseesso 20
DEMOTION TO VACANCIES .....cvvoittiiteermrieeeeseeeeseeeseeesssresssseseseeeeeeeeeeeeeees e 20
REEMPLOYMENT LIST .....coccouremenimrnrinniseseeeeeoeosesseeeessesssessesssessses s 20
REEMPLOYMENT .........couititiineesestuneressesseseseseseneseessesseesssessssess e se s eoss e e eee e 20
ARTICLE XV .ootiiitniciinicenscesesisesssnnssassssasssssssssssssssssssssessesssses s e oo eeeesseeesessseeenn 21
151 NEGOTIATIONS.........oevueeemnmmninsinseseeesssseseseeesssesssessssess s seeeese s eeeeeesn 21

152 LENGTH OF AGREEMENT .....otuvumemeeeeeeeeeeoseesssseessees oot eees oo e 21
APPENDIX A: SALARY SCHEDULE. ..........ccoooiiiiiiiieeeaseeeeeeoe 22
APPENDIX B: RESOLUTION 2-01....coeeeeeeeeieeeeseeeeeeeci e 23

v|Page



PREAMBLE

This Memorandum of Understanding is entered into by and between the Waterloo Morada
Rural County Fire Protection Fire District, hereinafter referred to as the “Fire District” and
the Firefighters of San Joaquin County, Local 1243, International Association of
Firefighters, hereinafter referred to as the “Union”, pursuant to California Government
Code, Section 3500 et seq. as their exclusive and mutual agreement.

It is the purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding: to achieve and maintain harmonious
relations between the Fire District and the Union; to provide for peaceful adjustments of
differences which may arise; to establish wages, hours and working conditions, as described in
Government Code Section 3500.

Lt

ARTICLE I
RECOGNITION e

B
The Fire District recognizes that the Union is the exclusive bargaining ag‘éfﬂ for aif paid, full
time Firefighters, Engineers, Captains and Battalion Chiefs as g;ﬁ?kd in the Gove@mgnt Code
Section 3501. The Union also recognizes that the Fire Distritt is the employer and the Fire Chief

is the primary contact for all matters relating to »l,aargammg 1§§g§s. L ok

The representatives for the Fire District and the Union havi\ri_ ,' ached agreement as*
hereinafter set forth, this Memorandum shalf be submitted to the District Board with the
joint recommendation that #i’body: adopt this memorandum as its policies for the period of
time specified in Article X'V, unless these p(%licie,;s*;iire otherwise changed by the appropriate

meet and confer processes. s § .
s g Gh ARTICLE II
RIGHT TO ORGANIZE .

%

o Fi}gDiStriCt' and the Union agree to the right to representation as defined in the Government
Code Section 3502

EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

Employees of the District shall have the right to form, join and participate in the activities of
employee organizations of their own choosing for the purpose of representation on all
matters pursuant to law concerning employer-employee relations. Employees of the District
shall also have the right to refuse to join or participate in the activities of employee
organizations and shall have the right to represent themselves individually in their
employment relations with the District.

Nothing in this Memorandum of Understanding is intended to deprive an employee of
his/her rights under applicable law.

l|Page



UNIT RECOGNITION

The District agrees to acknowledge, pursuant to Sections 3502 et.seq of the California
Government Code, the Firefighters of San J oaquin County, Local 1243 Unit 15 Waterloo
Morada Professional Firefighters Association (WMPFFA) as The exclusive recognized
employee organization representing the fire service employees in the listed Subsection 6.2
below, until such time as WMPFFA fails to obtain a majority of the vote of the employees in
that bargaining unit during a decertification election. As the exclusive recognized employee
organization, WMPFFA shall have the right and obligation to meet and confer and reach
agreement with the District regarding the determination of wages, hours, and other terms
and conditions of employment for employees represented by the WMPFFA organization.
Nothing in this article shall be construed as violative of any requirement or provision of the
Myers-Milias-Brown Act.

This Union shall consist of all permanent and probationary employees in the following
classifications:

Fire Battalion Chief
Fire Captain

Fire Engineer
Firefighter

New classifications, after the meet and confer process and approved by the District Board,
shall be appropriately placed within this unit.

For all purposes, Fire District Volunteers, Contract Firefighters, Seasonal Firefighters,
Reserves and/or Explorers are not considered employees and are not subject to the
provisions of this Memorandum of Understanding. In addition, the District and WMPFF
recognize that Volunteers, Reserves and/or Explorers will not be used to replace full time
regular or probationary employees.

ARTICLE II1

DISTRICT RIGHTS

Except as limited by the provisions of this MOU, the District retains the fundamental and
inherent management rights necessary to operate as a fire protection district in accordance
with the MOU and applicable laws. The District’s retained management rights are to:

1. Determine the District’s mission.

2. Determine the necessity for and organization of any service or activity performed by the
District.

3. Determine the nature, manner, means, and extent of services to be provided to the public.
4. Establish an operational budget and determine methods of financing.

5. Determine types of equipment or technology to be used by the District.

6. Determine the organizational structure, size and composition of the work force.

7. Hire, transfer and promote employees.

8. Direct employees in the performance of their duties.

9. Establish reasonable employee performance standards.

10. Discipline and dismiss employees in accordance with the MOU, District Policies and
Procedures, and all applicable labor laws

11. Take any and all necessary action to carry out the District’s mission in Emergencies.
Nothing in this management rights clause is intended to limit or nullify any express
provisions of this MOU.

2|Page



ARTICLE IV

STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS

The Union, its members and all employees within the employee bargaining unit represented
herein, hereby agree that it shall not call, sanction, or engage in any primary strike,
sympathetic strike, boycott, slowdown, suspension or stoppage of work for the duration of
this Memorandum and for the period of time necessary to conclude a successor Agreement
to this Memorandum.

The District agrees that it shall not cause or engage in any lockout, for the duration of this
Memorandum.

ARTICLE V

DISCRIMINATION

The Fire District and the Union agree to prohibit discrimination as @ﬁne& in ‘Goziigmment Code
Section 3506 and federal law.

UNION BUSINESS
6.1  UNION BUSINESS

The Fire District andtize Union agre"?,t;hat 1 (onej'}éiecied o‘f‘ffgiai (unit representative, shop

steward, negotiation representativé etc.), and 1(one) recorder for employee representation under
. o o e ¥ AT R . B . N

this Mémorandum of Understanding.shall be allowed time off for all matters concerning

répresentation by the Unip"as defined by:Government Code Section 3505.3.

TheUnion agrees to notify; i writing, the émployer the names of the Union individuals involved

in Ufiion Business and keep the employer appraised of any changes.
6.2 DUES DEDUCTION

A.  The Flre District agrees to deduct, once each pay period, dues as may be authorized in the
amount certified annually to be current by the Union from the pay of those employees
who voluntarily request such deduction in writing. The total amount of deductions shall
be remitted by the Fire District to the Union at an address to be provided by the Union.
Authorization for payroll deduction shall remain in full force and effect during the term

of this Memorandum.

B. The Union shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Fire District against any claims
and against any suit instituted against the Fire District on account of Check-off of Union
dues.

C. The Union shall refund to the Fire District any moneys paid in error upon presentation of
proper evidence.

3|Page



ARTICLE VII

PREVAILING BENEFITS

A.  The Fire District and the Union agree that all benefits and working conditions enjoyed by
the employees past and present, which are not specifically included in this Memorandum
of Understanding, shall remain in force, unchanged and unaffected in any manner, during
the term of this Memorandum of Understanding, unless changed by mutual consent in
writing. The Union further agrees that the employees shall not abuse benefits they now

enjoy.
B.  The Fire District agrees to all wages, benefits and agreements negotiated in this
Memorandum.
ARTICLE VIII
SCOPE OF REPRESENTATION

The Fire District and the Union agree that any changes regarding wages, hours, and other terms
and conditions of employment by either party shall be in writing and subject to meet and confer
except in cases of emergency as defined by Government Code Section 3504.5 and Section 3507.

ARTICLE IX

RULES AND REGULATIONS

The Fire District and the Union agree to establish a committee consisting of one (1) Chief
Officer and one (1) Union Representative to periodically review areas including, but not limited
to, Fire District Policy, Rules and Regulations and Grievance Procedures.

ARTICLE X
10.1 SALARIES

During the term of this Agreement, salaries for all classifications will be adjusted as follows:

Effective Adjustment
Julv 1, 2022 4% base salary adjustment
July 1, 2023 4% base salary adjustment

The salary schedule effective July 1, 2022 is hereby attached as Appendix A.

10.2 OUT OF GRADE COMPENSATION

A. The Fire District and the Union agree that employees will be paid at five percent (5%) above
their current salary rate when working out of grade as assigned. Out of grade is defined as: Any
rank acting in capacity of a higher rank.

4|Page



In such cases such as an emergency and operational deficiencies, an Out of Grade assignment is
at the sole discretion of the Fire Chief. The predominant factor to be considered shall be the
need of the District and will not be unreasonable.

If such need arises, the employee will be paid five percent (5%) above their current hourly salary
rate when working out of grade as assigned in staffing program.

With approval from the Fire Chief, Battalion Chief will be paid five percent (5%) above their
current hourly rate when the Fire Chief is on planned vacation or extended time off,

B. Grade will be defined as Job Description shown in Appendix A.

C. Out of Grade Qualifications

A. Captain as Battalion Chief
CA State Fire Training Fire Officer Certificate
District Task Book Completion
Minimum of 1 year as captain with the District s

B. Engineer as Captain T s
CA State Fire Training Firefighter II Cﬁgxﬁémate €
CA State Fire Training Company Offi cer 2D (All RlSk) v
District Task Book Completion ’%»m
Minimum of 3 years w;tﬁkthe District and 15‘/ ear at "the Engineer rank

C. Firefighter as Engineer §:; Tk, 4

Completion of up to anfelght%w'eek academy
Driver @peratar 1A £ e
~District Task Book Compftetﬁ:m -
\"vhmmum of 4 months wﬂ;h the District. -

oty

TR e P "?, -";, e “ oo v
AT A Y s TiCLE X1
e TSR
BE‘NEFITS \i{_v ;

11.1 %ACCUMULATED TIME OFF (ATO

vP g

A. New 'Emnlovees

1. New employees will be awarded prorated ATO accumulation dependent on hire date.
If the employee begins employment with the District between;

July 1 and September 30, the employee will receive 96 hours of ATO Leave on
October 1.

Start date between October 1 and December 31%, the employee will receive 72 hours
of ATO Leave on January 1%,

Start date between January 1 and March 31, the employee will receive 48 hours of
ATO Leave on April 1%,

5|Page



Start date between April 1 and June 30%, the employee will receive 24 hours of ATO
in the last pay period of June.

B. Existing emplovees

11.2

1. Existing employees at the beginning of the fiscal year will accrue ninety-six
hours of banked ATO Leave. Except as allowed under section 11.3, below, any
unused ATO Leave remaining in each employee's ATO Leave bank will be
paid out in the last pay period of June at the employee's hourly base rate.

2. Paid out ATO shall not be considered compensation pensionable or earnable

(collectively referred to as “retirement eligible compensation”) for either Tier I
(“classic”) or Tier I (PEPRA) employees.

HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

Fire District shall submit a monthly premium of eighty percent (80%) of the Kaiser
Platinum HMO premium cost under the California Choice Plans. If an employee elects to
participate in any other of the California Choice Plans the difference will be the
responsibility of the employee. Employees currently enrolled cannot change plan fevel
until the open enrollment period. Both the Fire District and Union recognize and agree
that the employer may need to make unilateral changes to health benefits provided under
the terms of this agreement pursuant to changes in State or Federal laws. In such case, the
employer agrees to notify the Union and “meet and confer” over any such changes.

1f an employee wishes to opt-out of the Fire District sponsored health care benefit plan
the Fire District shall provide the current cost of that employee’s current plan up to five
hundred fifty-dollars ($550.00) maximum to the employee per month.

Employee’s that wish to opt-out must provide the Fire District with a certificate of
eligible coverage or proof of current medical coverage.

Any change in either the health or dental insurance programs will be with the mutual
agreement of the parties

The Fire District shall pay all cost of the dental insurance premium for the employee only
and will not be considered as part of the insurance premium.

Retired employees may remain on the Fire District health care benefit plan (retiree will
pay the premium and the deductible) as long as the program is available through the
mutual agreed upon health care and dental program.

The employee will pay the amount of their medical and dental insurance costs that exceed
the Fire District’s contribution by authorizing payroll deductions.

6|Page



H. The Fire District shall pay and provide immunization and inoculation program for
infectious diseases at the employee’s option.

11.3 VACATION

A. The Fire District and the Union agree that vacation shall be eamed according to the
following annual schedule:

Years of Service Hours/month Hours/Year 24 hour shifts
o :
e o 14 168 7
g e

13 years on

145 months + 22 264 ' 1

B. Vacation shall be taken in four (4) hour increments? The maximum vacation ﬁaat may be
accumulated shall not exceed three hundred sixty (360%hours.. Any employee W;ghmg to

accumulate the maximum number of l%'é@lgs must advisg @ Hire Chief. 4.3
_”;;. o

’s‘n.'»;
C. The Fire District and the Union agree t{) allow F irefighter s*;Engmeers Captains and
Battalion Chlefs t@ take vacaifon on hohdays f W

Y
; ' &
D. The Fire Dlstrlct and the Wion agree that vacation w1ll accrue on a monthly basis. Under
e « Special c;rcumstanees “With'tlie Fire Chief. approval any unused vacation hours may be
1. ™ held over for a ma%mnum of t ee.(?ﬂ myonths If unused by the end of that three (3)
k: _ months they wﬂl begcashed outand pald to the employee in the next pay cycle.

‘\s.-,»'

E . The Fire Dlsts ict and the Union agree to that only one (1) employee at a time may take

\ume off.
NA s

=
S

F. Vacation time is earned from the first day of the month the employee was hired in
regardless of the date of hire. Vacation time will be received on the First day of the
month.

G. The Fire District and the Union agree that the Fire District will pay, upon the death of an
employee prior to retirement, at the employee’s current rate of pay; the employee’s
accumulated vacation balance to the employee’s estate.

H. The time at which the employee shall be granted a vacation is at the discretion of
the Fire Chief or his/her designee. The predominant factor to be considered shall
be the need of the District during critical staffing shortages and will not be
unreasonably denied.

7|Page



L. Time off properly entered into the staffing program and approved by a Duty Officer shall

114

11.5

11.6

be considered protected time off. Protected time off may only be cancelled by mutual
agreement between the member and district.

At their option, each employee, in the last full pay period of May and/or December each
year may elect to convert up to 150 hours of accrued vacation to ATO leave and be paid
out such converted leave at straight time. As noted in section 1 1.1.B.2, above, such paid-
out ATO shall not be considered retirement eligible compensation.

UNIFORM ALLOWANCE

The Fire District and the Union agree that the Fire District will purchase up to one —
thousand dollars ($1,000.00) a year in uniforms per employee.

Personnel will be required to purchase and maintain and approved Class “A” uniform
within two years of employment.

FAMILY ILLNESS

The Fire District and the Union agree to allow, at the request of the employee, in the
event of an illness of a member of the immediate family and or a situation causing an
employee to be granted emergency custody of a minor, the Fire District shall allow

1/2 of accrued sick leave available per occurrence to be deducted from accumulated sick
leave. If additional time is needed the employee may request additional time.

Immediate family is defined as the employee or the employee’s spouse/domestic
partner’s: Father, Mother, Step-Parent, Brother, Sister, Son, Daughter, Grandfather,
Grandmother, Grandchild or Stepchild, Foster child.

SICK LEAVE

The Fire District and the Union agree that an employee shall earn twenty four (24) hours
of sick Ieave a month, two hundred and eighty-eight (288) hours a year. Employees may
accrue up to four thousand (4000) hours of sick leave. Sick leave may not be used until
the employee has completed 90 days of service.

Sick leave shall be computed by hours and deducted from the employees benefit, on an
hour sick, hour deduction basis.

The Fire District and the Union agree that when an employee is injured while on duty,
and after using all the employees 4850 time, the employee may use his/her accumulated
sick leave.

Employees shall continue to accrue sick leave while off on a Jjob related sickness or
injury.

8§|Page



E. The Fire District and the Union agree that an employee shall earn twenty four (24) hours
of sick leave a month for the first thirty six (36) months, two hundred and eighty eight
(288) hours a year. After that period, eighteen (18) hours a month shall be earned, two
hundred and sixteen (216) hours a year. Employees may accrue up to three thousand
(3000) hours of sick leave. Sick leave may not be used until the employee has completed
90 days of service.

F. Sick leave shall be computed by hours and deducted from the employees benefit, on an
hour sick, hour deduction basis.

G. The Fire District and the Union agree that when an employee is injured while on duty,
and after using all the employees 4850 time, the employee may use his/her accumulated
sick leave.

o "*f.;‘ﬁ'
H. Employees shall continue to accrue sick leave while off on a job related.si€ktiess or
. . o
Injury. P & : ‘L'
o ‘f, ;”% e
L. Except as provided in Board Resolution 2-01 (see ExhibitB)#of as specifically set fogth inJ.
below, employees shall, receive no sick leave bank, cashﬁayout or simigg credit for aceumulated

unused sick leave. % # e %
*‘?;Y i -;‘ﬁ"' .

i i (é“i"ﬂ
J. Employees hired on or after August 27..2001 -
. . %
. % i \ i P '{ﬁ;g‘ ey .‘1%’
L. Employeé§ ‘hifed on or after August 27. 2001, upon-retirement from Waterloo Morada
Mgim District only, may. ”_;iect to rcceifivé up to twenty-five per cent (25%) of their
*a%:ér;féq, unused sick leave paid at s%f:é‘fight time. For any form of termination other

;2;, ~ than reﬁ%emeﬁ*t;fr%m Water‘ltifj‘}\%i{o;acifé Fire District, all accumulated sick leave shall

be forfeited.

JL As coni}fﬁ;ed by SJCERS, accrued sick leave paid at retirement shall not be

k¢ congide’fed retirement eligible compensation. If, at any time, this section J.2 is

A d:é’gmed unlawful or unenforceable, section J.1. shall be void, and the parties will
immediately meet and confer to consider options.

11.7 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

A. The Fire District will grant an employee up to two (2) working shifts, (forty-eight (48)
hours) with pay so that an employee may attend the funeral of a member of the
employee’s immediate family. Time will be deducted from the accumulated sick leave of
the employee.

B. Immediate family is defined as the employee or the employee’s spouse/domestic partner:

Father, Mother, Step-Parent, Brother, Sister, Son, Daughter, Grandfather, Grandmother,
Grandchild or Stepchild, Foster child.

9|/Page



11.8

11.9

-

T Q

—

MATERNITY LEAVE

If the employee presents evidence of a pregnancy then she is eligible for light duty
assignment as per department policy 1-11-4

CATASTROPHIC LEAVE
Definition
Leave: Vacation, Compensatory Time and Sick Leave

The Fire Chief or designee will process applications for receipt of catastrophic leave
donations.

An employee becomes eligible to receive catastrophic leave donations when the
following three (3) conditions both occur:

(1) The employee has exhausted, or will soon exhaust all his/her leave, as a result of a
verifiable long-term illness or injury suffered by the employee, spouse, son, daughter,
stepchild or foster child. On a case by case basis, the Board of Directors may include
other immediate family members as defined in 9.7(B).

(2) The employee has received approval from the Fire Chief.

(3) There is no cost to the Fire District.

Employees may donate accrued vacation, compensatory time or sick leave.

. Donations will be made in whole hour increments with a minimum of twelve (12) hours

per donor. Vacation and compensatory time shall be donated in increments as defined in
11.3(B) and 12.2(B), if a combination of leave is to be used.

Donated time will be converted to dollars at the hourly rate of the donor and subtracted
from the designated leave category.

Donated dollars as computed above will be converted to hours at the hourly rate of the
recipient, and add to recipient’s sick leave balance.

Donors must have an overall leave balance of two hundred forty (240) hours remaining
after donation time has been deducted.

Once donated to an individual, donated time cannot be reclaimed by the donor.

Donated time is treated as sick leave accrued by the recipient of the donation.

10|Page



11.10 JURY DUTY

11.11

Employees are encouraged to serve on jury duty. While so serving, they will still be paid
by the District on the basis of a 56 hour work week, at their normal rate of pay, fora
maximum of six (6) weeks (i.e. 30 workdays) per calendar year, on condition that any
compensation in excess of mileage expenses received from the court be turned over to the
District. Compensation for jury duty in excess of six (6) weeks per calendar year may be
considered on a case by case basis.

RETIREMENT

Unless otherwise stated, all statutory references in this section "9.9 Retirement" of this
Memorandum of Understanding are to the California Government Code.

Benefit Tiers and Eligibility L
SJCERA Tier 1 - Employees who established and maintain membershlp if: “fhe San
Joaquin County Employees' Retirement Association (SJCERA) pridr, f@“January 1,2013,
and other eligible employees as defined by law, partlclpate il e cieﬁned bgneﬁt formula

that was in place before January 1, 2013, heremafter "S CERA Tier 1."

] “,w
SJICERA Tier 2 - Employees who estaéahsh membersﬁ;prm SJCERA on or aﬁer January
1, 2013, who are subject to the prov1s1on5\gf the PubllCiEmployees Pension Reform Act
of 2013 (Article 4 (commencmg with Sect10m?:>22 et seq ).of Chapter 21 of Division 7
of Title 1 of the Government Code), heremafter “PEPRA patticipate in the defined
benefit formuia prescribed by PEPRA fer these empIO}, ees, hereinafter "SJICERA Tier

" vt
2 p 3% .S =
e s

-aﬁ."," % 5 " “,“‘),( . !

*'sy CERA T:?er 2b\i mployees who establlsh membership in SJCERA on or after January
"I, 2022 wh0 dre sflbject to the provisions of the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act
of 2013 as Tler IT employees. The SICERA Board of Retirement amended its
:determmatlcm of Pensionable Compensation to exclude special pay items for this group
o{‘ Tier 2 members The letter “b” for “base pay” will be used by SICERA to refer to this
group of new Tier 2 members (“Tier 2b members™).

Retirement Formula

The District shall maintain the defined benefit retirement formula specified in Section
31664.1 (3% at age 50 plan) for Safety Members of SJCERA Tier I. An annual cost of
living adjustment of up to three percent (3%) shall be maintained in accordance with
Section 31780.1 for monthly benefits payable by SICERA to retired members (Tiers I
and II) or their beneficiaries.

Retirement Contributions
Employees who are members of SJCERA Tier I shall pay the member contributions as
determined pursuant to Section 31639.5 for Safety Members. Employees who are

HlPage



members of SJCERA Tier 11 shall pay member contributions pursuant to Section
7522.30, which shall be at least 50% of normal cost as determined annually by the plan
actuary and expressed as a percentage of payroll. The District shall not pay any of the
required member contribution. In accordance with Section 31873, the contributions
required for the normal cost of post-retirement cost-of-living adjustments shall be shared
equally between the District and employees who are members of SJCERA. Employees'
retirement contributions to SICERA shall be made on a pre-tax basis.

D. The Fire District will continue to contribute the F ire District’s premium to the retirement
plan known as “County Employee’s Retirement Law of 19377, Government Code
Section 31664.1, 3% @ 50 formula with the San Joaquin County Employee’s Retirement
Association (SJCERA). Pursuant to Government Code section 31873, the contributions
required to fund the cost of living portion of retirement benefits shall be shared fifty
percent (50%) between the Fire District and fifty percent (50%) employees who
contribute to retirement. The parties intend that this provision be implemented in
compliance with Section 31873 in as administratively simple and cost-effective a manner
as possible.

The Fire District will continue to participate in Post-Employment Health Insurance
Agency Fund (Sick Leave Bank) for those employees hired before August 27, 2001.

Employees hired on or after January 1.2013

The Fire District will contribute the Fire District’s premium to the retirement plan
Known as “County Employee’s Retirement Law of 19377, Government Code Section
31664.1, 2.7% @ 57 formula with the San Joaquin County Employee’s Retirement
Association. (SJCERA), under the PERA benefit structure for new members on or after
January 1, 2013 labeled “Tier II”.

11.12 DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The Fire District and the Union agree to continue the deferred compensation plan
available to the employees, any and all costs for implementing such a plan will be borne
by the employee participating in the plan.

ARTICLE X1I

EDUCATIONAL

12.1 INCENTIVE

The Fire District agrees that employees covered by this agreement shall receive additional
compensation at the following rates for the educational levels indicated:

1. Completion of California State Fire Officer Courses Fifty dollars ($50.00) per month

12|Page



2. Associates in Arts Degree or Associates in Seventy five dollars ($75.00) per month
Science with emphasis in Fire Science.

3. Bachelor’s Degree One hundred dollars ($100.00) per month

12.2 TRAINING

1. Out of Jurisdiction Training Requested by the Employee:

Out of jurisdiction tralmng is any training session in which the employee is registered as a
student, and instruction is conducted by and certified or accredited by an authority other than the
Waterloo Morada Fire District.

The Fire District will support classes that are local and a benefit to the Fire Dlstrlct b 5 11 fiproving
the employee’s knowledge, skills and abilities for his/her position. The Fire Dzstrmt will also
support requests that the employee will attend and return to train Fire Dlstftct persennel. Upon
approval, the employee will pay tuition, fees, and/or any other costs’ m advance.

-f,’i,

a. Personnel requesting out of jurisdiction trammg must complete the esfabhshed
documentation of the tuition, fees. and/or any @ther COsts’ fer approval by ﬁae Chief
or Designee. f" c’“ . ,‘1 %, L
5 ¢ %
b. Upon approval, tmii@n, fees, andmr other costs wﬂl be paid in advance by the
employee 1 g 6 alENER
c. . Upon cbmpletlon of the class ormammg session with a passing score, the

The F1re ~i,) trfct;upcan receipt of the original will reimburse employee
documentatlon recelpts~ a?fd Ventacatlon of successful class completion.
s v,; :

d. Personnel requgsting out of Jurlsdlctlon training shall be required to obtain their
own time off for any scheduled workdays needed to attend the training. To do
this. the employee needs to request it following the Memorandum of

{Understandmg for shift trades or vacation.

€. The Fire District shall not authorize any training already outlined as Education
Incentive in the Memorandum of Understanding.

2. Out of Jurisdiction Training Requested by the Fire District:

When the Fire District requests an employee to attend a training session and/or course, the Fire
District shall pay:

Tuition: 100% Registration: 100% Textbooks: 100%
Transportation: Fire District Vehicle when appropriate, or IRS allowance for

personal vehicle.
Lodging: 100%

13|Page



3.

Meals: Breakfast, Lunch & Dinner. Twenty five dollar ($25.00) allowable
limit, must turn in receipts for reimbursement.

Wages: Overtime for the actual class time attended while off duty. If class
time exceeds posted/scheduled time posted on announcement,
additional overtime needs to be authorized by the Fire Chief.

Specialized Team Training:

Those employees who are affiliated with any federal, state and/or county team as approved by
the Fire District shall receive compensation for required training hours specified by that federal,
state and/or county team when attending on a day not scheduled to work.

ARTICLE XIII

WORKING CONDITIONS

13.1

13.1.1

13.2

WORK SCHEDULE

24-hour shift employees are scheduled to work a 48/96 work schedule, which equals two
hundred and twelve scheduled work hours every twenty-eight day duty cycle.

When a shift is scheduled for December 24™ and 25%, December 231 and December 24t
are exchanged with shift prior.

Example:

Scheduled Exchanged
22 23 24 25 22 23 24 25
A A B B A B A B
WORK PERIOD

The District has established a 7(k) FLSA work period of twenty-eight consecutive days in
lieu of the seven-day workweek for the purpose of paying overtime. The maximum work
hours standard for fire protection employees is 212 for a work period of twenty-eight
days.

OVERTIME

The District shall have the right to require employees to work in order to maintain
minimum staffing, provide District coverage during emergency situations, provide special
event/assignment coverage and/or maintain licenses/certifications. The assignment of
overtime shall be in conformance with existing procedures.

14|Page



13.2.1 OVERTIME PAY:

When an employee is called back or detained, the employee will be compensated at one and one-
half (1.5) times the hourly rate.

The employee shall receive three half-hours of overtime per week to account for FLSA overtime
owed.

A. Employees who, while off duty, stop to render aid at accident scenes, fires, medical
emergencies or other emergency situations, where the employee takes any physical
action (stops bleeding, rescues from harm, controls, traffic, etc.) shall be eligible for
overtime. Pay will be one (1) hour minimum. The involved employee shall, as soon
as reasonably possible, contact the Duty Chief to provide notification to the District,
and fill out an incident report documenting their actions to be completed by the
employee's next duty day. -

13.2.2 COMPENSATORY TIME:

B. When an employee is called back or detained, theginployee may receivenin lieu of
overtime compensation, compensatory time off (CT_} ), with glag;gxception og’d}e first
six (6) month period of initial employment, i £

4?@ AT s,&;w {
\,f’&\g w v;é- : f %‘, ;3%

i+
~;

)
ity 9

e Yoo
C. CTO will accumulate at the rate of one anéi one-half (1.5) hg;xrs for each hour of overtime
converted to compensatoty time off. % , “

< ] [y “rfﬂfxét'“ T 3 L.
D. Compensatory tif‘neﬂ;pff shall{béf taken in no I¢ss than three ‘(3)-hour increments.

< ¥

¥

R L
ovgrto the next ,f'{v.cal year:

BT e LT Bt
E, A7 employee.may rlot hccrue of #ank" more than two hundred-four (204) hours of
*,CTO (which equals ong hundred-thirty six (136) overtime hours converted to CTO).
F. Acagmulatgd cqmpensatory time taken shall in no event necessitate an overtime situation nor
create an tindue hardship in Fire District scheduling or maintaining Fire District operations.

not 5
Any accrued ancg‘i‘hnuse&;CTO remaining in each employee's CTO bank may be carried

G. Compensatory time will be accumulated at the established rate of one and one-half (1.5)
times the hourly rate.

H. The maximum allowable accumulated compensatory time will not exceed a total of one
hundred thirty six (136) overtime hours. The one hundred thirty six (136) overtime hours is
an accumulation of both 9.1 Accumulated Time Off sixty four (64) hours and 10.2.2
Compensatory Time seventy two (72) hours.

L. It shall be the responsibility of each employee to submit the proper documentation, to the
shift supervisor, of their intent to convert “overtime” eared into compensatory time.

J. The shift supervisor must approve all compensatory time off prior to being taken.

I5|Page



13.3 MINIMUM DAILY STAFFING

Sufficient personnel shall be maintained on duty and available for response to alarms. Sufficient
full time paid firefighters shall be available to provide a minimum of (1) Battalion Chief, two 2)
Engine companies staffed daily.

Maintain Daily staffing on Engine Companies at Five (5) personnel. Maintaining one (I) Engine
Company with three (3) personnel consisting of one (1) Company Officer, (1) Apparatus
Operator, and one (1) Firefighter. The other Engine Company shall have a minimum of (2) line
personnel consisting of one (1) Company Officer, and one (I) Apparatus Operator.

Each Battalion Chief shall have a minimum of one (1) Battalion Chief or qualified person acting
in his or her capacity per shift.

Full time paid firefighter is defined as any sworn firefighter having the rank of Firefighter,
Engineer, Captain, and Battalion Chief.

Company Officer is defined as Captain or qualified person acting in his or her capacity.

Apparatus Operator is defined as Engineer or qualified person acting in his or her capacity,

Line personnel is defined as ranks of Captain, Engineer and Firefighter.

In such cases such as an emergency and operational deficiencies, a reduction in staffing is at the sole
discretion of the Fire Chief. The predominant factor to be considered shall be the need of the
District and will not be unreasonable.

A full time paid firefighter is defined as any sworn firefighter achieving the rank of Firefighter
Step 1 as described in the MOU between Local 1243 and the Fire District.

The District will allow one (1) member off using ATO/VAC/CTO leave per shift.
Approved time off.

13.3.1 MINIMUM DISTRICT STAFFING

The Fire District and the Union agree to maintain a minimum District staffing of eighteen (18)
full time paid firefighters. Defined in 13.3Minimum Daily Staffing.

The preferred recognized rank positions will be three (3) Battalion Chiefs, six (6) Captains, six
(6) Engineers and three (3) Firefighters

16|Page



13.4 SHIFT SCHEDULES

The Fire District and the Union agree twenty four (24)-hour employees will work a 48 / 96 work
schedule. Defined as:

24 hours on duty

24 hours on duty

96 hours off duty
The twenty-four (24) hour shift will begin at 8:00 a.m. and will continue until 8:00 a.m. the
following morning.

13.4.1 TEMPORARY ASSIGNMENT TO 40 HOUR WEEK SCHEDULE

Refer to WMFD Policy 1-11-1 P
13.5 JOB DESCRIPTIONS w‘i@w %

The Fire District and the Union agree to submit to a Comrr&j;;cé any ‘draft Job descriptions as
provided, per the current MOU. Committee will submit for{xi;%diﬁcatioxla and approva{”’é}f the job

A

descriptions to the Fire District Board. L g,
B PR S ":“:9?«
L T
o)
A
L

13.6 STEP ADVANCEMENT.

A. The Fire District and-the Union s;a}gre:c.=, any employee hired at step 1 of the Firefighter salary
must serve a probationary period’cf twelve}(12) months, whi¢h may be extended at the
discretion’of the F n"&eC‘lgbefT}L twelve-month probation period shall be in two (2) periods.

B. ‘-*",Tfi;léip%batibngry Fir'é?fj?gﬁ{é? mustpass;the first six (6) month mid probation test and receive
‘an Employee Appraisal,with the rating'of “Performance Meets Standard” or greater overall.

C. ‘Upon completion‘of the:second (6) months at step 1, an employee must pass the final
probation test and receive an Employee Appraisal with the rating of “Performance Meets
Sta%dard” or ggg’ater overall to become eligible for merit advancement to step 2 of the salary
rangg. .t

T
€t

Upon the éompletion of twelve (12) months satisfactory service the employee shall become
eligible for a merit advancement to the next level of their rank salary range.

D. Lateral new hires and newly promoted employees into any unit position will be required to
serve a twelve (12) month probationary period as outlined above in 13.6, A., B., and C.

13.7 APPENDAGE

The Fire District and the Union agree Rules and Regulations and the Grievance procedure shall
be made available.

17‘-|Page



13.8 SAFETY EQUIPMENT

A. The Fire District shall provide all required Cal OSHA safety equipment.

B. The Fire District shall provide a new pair of Cal OSHA approved boots every three (2)
years.  And repair or replace as needed between purchase years.

13.9 CERTIFICATE/LICENSE REIMBURSEMENT

The District shall reimburse employees for the renewal of EMT and/or EMTP recertification,
Department of Motor Vehicle Driver’s License and medical evaluation. Medical evaluation
reimbursement shall not exceed the District’s contracted facility fee.

13.10 SHIFT TRADE

Employees shall have the right to initiate shift trades providing such exchanges do not interfere
with the operation of the Fire District and are approved by the officer in charge. An employee
may request to trade time for any hour(s) or shift(s) for which they are able to secure another
fully qualified employee to work in their place. Trade time shall not result in additional cost to
the District.

The District shall not, in any way, be held responsible for arrangements made between
employees pursuant to this Section. That employee who is scheduled to work after approval of
the shift trade shall be responsible, in all respects, for service to the District as outlined below:

If the Fire District is required to hold an employee on duty to cover the absence, the employee
causing the vacancy will be charged 1.5 times the hours missed from their time bank.

13.11 LEAVE OF ABSENCE

A. The Fire District and the Union agree a leave of absence may be granted by the Chief, not
to exceed thirty (30) calendar days for personal reasons or thirty (30) days beyond the use
of accumulated sick leave for medical reasons.

18|Page



ARTICLE X1V
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

DEFINITIONS
Grievance: An alleged violation of a specific rule or regulation contained in the
memoranda of understanding or Fire District rules.

Day: Work day(s), Monday through Friday, excluding County Holidays.
POLICY STATEMENT
The bargaining unit employees herein are encouraged to solve difficulties and

problems within their department. In the event that a difficulty or grievance cannot be
settled within the department, the employee is encouraged to bring the matter to the

attention of the District Fire Chief. ‘ 443%
PURPOSE T

T
The purpose of this grievance procedure is to secure, at the lowcﬁ’ﬁgSSiBle administrative
or supervisory level, proper and equitable solutions to.gfievances, and to guarantee
orderly succession of procedures within which solutiohs faay be pursued. It s'h"éﬁ be
incumbent upon all District employees to_follow th sk procedurés to settle \their
oAl W

B wl
o W

grievances. %, 5 A

FILING DEADLINE |

%

s

Grievances filed under this Section]hall be 11’;: ated within fifteen (15) days from the time the
employee knew or “should have known” of the facts giving rise to the grievance.

i, NHL  efE T oy 7
e W
=

Gl RN, B :
GRIEVANCE PROCESSING e

W s
27 el F
o BB &,

k. % wi
STEP 1: Any grievance shall be discussed with the employee’s immediate supervisor. If the
issue is not resolved:at the supervisor’s level within three (3) days from the day of presentation,
the issu¢ may be pfocessed to the second step. If the shift commander is the immediate
supervisot. the’grievance shall be in writing and contain the information specified in Step 2
below.

STEP 2: If the grievance is not resolved in Step 1 of the procedure, then the grievance may be
filed with the Shift Commander. The grievance must be in writing and must be filed within ten
(10) days of the response from Step 1 or from the date when such response was due. The grievance
must state: (1) the specific rule or regulation, which is alleged to have been violated; (2) the
statement of facts comprising the violation; (3) the requested remedy. The Shift Commander shall
have ten (10) days in which to investigate the issues and respond in writing to the grievance.
NOTE: If the immediate supervisor, in Step 1 of this process, is the Shift Commander, Step 2 may
be bypassed; however, the grievance must be in writing as specified above.

STEP 3: Within ten (10) days of the receipt of the written response or date when the written

response was due from the Shift Commander, the employee or representative may file the
grievance with the Fire Chief. The grievance must be in writing and contain the information

19|Pagé



specified in Step 2 above. The Fire Chief shall have ten (10) days from receipt of the grievance in
which to investigate and issue a written response. NOTE: If the immediate supervisor, in Step 2
of this process, is the Fire Chief, Step 3 may be bypassed; however, the grievance must be in
writing as specified above.

STEP 4: Within ten (10) days of the receipt of the written response or date when the written
response was due from the Fire Chief, the employee or representative may file the grievance with
the Board of Directors. The grievance must be in writing and contain the information specified in
Step 2 above. The Board of Directors shall have thirty-five (35) days from receipt of the grievance
in which to investigate and issue a written response.

The decision of the Board of Directors is final.

All members have the right to pursue or appeal any decision through a court of law.

All grievances shall be presented and acted upon in a timely manner, However, with the mutual
consent of the parties, the time limitation for any step may be extended.

ARTICLE XIV

STAFF REDUCTION PROCEDURE
DEMOTION TO VACANCIES

Whenever a layoff is instituted pursuant to Section 35.1. and at the time of the layoff, there
are vacant positions within the bargaining unit, the employee(s) affected by the layoff may
demote to a vacant position for which the emplovee is qualified. If two employees seek to
demote to the same position, the more senior employee shall assume the position. Seniority
shall be defined as the employee with the longest uninterrupted period of service with the

District.

REEMPLOYMENT LIST

Employees who are laid off as a result of District action shall have their names placed on a
reemployment list. Vacant positions in the bargaining unit shall be offered to qualified
employees on the reemployment list by order of seniority, with the most senior-qualified
employee recalled first.

Names shall be maintained on the reemployment list for a period of four (4) years. Persons
who decline a reemployment offer to any permanent position for which they are qualified
shall be stricken from the reemployment list.

REEMPLOYMENT

A laid-off employee who is recalled to a position in which she/he had permanency shall not
be required to serve a new probationary period. For purposes of reemployment, an employee
shall be required to meet the minimum standards required of the employee at the time of
layoff. Upon reemployment, a laid-off employee shall be restored sick leave and holiday
time off, pro rata, which has not been paid to or on behalf of the employee at the time of
layoff.

20|Page



Upon recall, the District will allow the recalled employee a reasonable period of time in
which to reinstate certifications that may have lapsed during theemployee's layoff.

ARTICLE XV
15.1 NEGOTIATIONS

The Fire District and the Union agree negotiations will commence on a new Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) ninety (90) days prior to Expiration of existing MOU.

15.2 LENGTH OF AGREEMENT

Y

This MOU shall be effective July 1, 2022, and shall remain in full force and qffgciiéﬂéu%h June
30, 2024 or until replaced by a successor agreement. The MOU may be extéhded beyond June
30, 2024 by mutual agreement of the parties. o’ v X

¥

ri

§70f8an Joaquin
Waterloo Morada Rural County - ”@9' 1 Joaqu Coung’y
3 . . - International Association of
Fire District 2 .
- B L vsflﬁflreﬁghters
By: AP By: . T
< 7 Date:" 5l e Date:
"@,i;%‘- wisDatel s Al Date:
v '” c "‘é‘é}éﬁﬂfr 2 ,,By:
', .Date: Date:
<>
“Date:
By: <
Date:

21|Page




APPENDIX A SALARY SCHEDULE

2022/2023
Annual Stepl Step2  Step 3 Annual Stepl  Step2  Step 3
BC 90,067 92,096 94,155 BC 93,669 95,779 97,921
Capt 79,043 80,799 82,616 Capt 82,205 84,031 85,921
Eng 69,291 70,866 72,501 Eng 72,063 73,701 75,401
FF 60,115 61,478 62,901 FF 62,519 63,937 65,417
Monthly Step1 Step2  Step3 Monthly Stepl Step2  Step 3
BC 7,505 7,674 7,846 BC 7,805 7,981 8,160
Capt 6,586 6,733 6,884 Capt 6,850 7,002 7,160
Eng 5,774 5905 6,041 Eng 6,005 6,141 6,283
FF 5,009 5,123 5,241 FF 5,210 5,328 5451
Bi Weekly Step1  Step2  Step 3 Bi Weekly Stepl Step2  Step 3
BC 3464 3,542 3,621 BC 3,602 3,683 3,766
Capt 3,040 3,107 3,177 Capt 3,161 3,231 3,304
Eng 2,665 2,725 2,788 Eng 2,771 2,834 2,900
FF 2,312 2,364 2,419 FF 2,404 2,459 2,515
Hourly Step1  Step2  Step 3 Hourly Stepl  Step2  Step 3
BC 3093 3163  32.33 BC 32.17 3289  33.63
Capt 27.14 2775 2837 Capt 2823  28.86  29.51
Eng 23.80 2434 2490 Eng 2475 2531 25.89
FF 2064  21.11 21.60 FF 2147 2196  22.46
Overtime Stepl  Step2  Step 3 Overtime Step1  Step2  Step 3
BC 46.39 4744  48.50 BC 4825 4934 5044
Capt 40.72  41.62  42.56 Capt 4234 4329 4426
Eng 3569  36.50 3735 Eng 3712 3796  38.84
FF 3097 3167 3240 FF 3220 3293 3370

22|Page



APPENDIX B RESOLUTION NO. 2-01

23|Page



RESOLUTIONNO. 2~¢/

RESOLUTION OF SEPTEMBER 10, 2001
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS F OR THE
WATERLOO MORADA RURAL COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT;
OF SAN JOAQUIN COUNT'Y.

WHEREAS, The San Joaquin County Employees’ Retirement Association and the County of San
Joaquin have become involved in a class-action litigation (SJDSA et al v.

Board of Retirement SJCERA, San Francisco Superior Court, Judicial Council Coordination
Preceding #4049) and

WHEREAS, as a result of that litigation, the Board of Supervisors and the Board of Retirement
have entered into a settlement agreement, approved by the courts to change benefits for County
employees and retirees of the San Joagquin County Employees® Retirement Association, and

WHEREAS, these benefit changes are to be initially funded out of excess earnings called The
Special Litigation Reserve and the Year 2000 Unappropriated Earnings Reserve of the retirement
association, and

WHEREAS, any future true-up costs as a result of the benefit change will be funded out of the
Unappropriated Earnings Reserve (if any), and

WHEREAS, the Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire Protection District was not included as a
party in the Settlement agreement, and

WHEREAS, benefits for active employees in the Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire Protection
District must be approved by the District Board of Directors, before they can be included, and

WHEREAS, the Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire Protection District and the employees’ of
the district have agreed to add specific benefits through a side-letter.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors takes the following
actions:

1) Approve the adoption of Government Code Section 31676.14 (2% at 55 % formula for
General Members) and Section 31664.1 (3% at 50 for Safety mermmbers) to be implemented
and to include all active and deferred members of the district as of January 1, 2001,

2) Approve the adoption of Government Code Section 31678.2 which applies to all
employees covered by section 1) above and allow all service time credit, prior to the
adoption date of this resolution, to eligible employees,

3) To continue the sick leave conversion program for all active employees hired on or before
August 27, 2001 on the basis of an 24 hour accrual value for each month of service.

E/(ﬁsﬁaomesponthxwiﬁmmohﬁms



Pt

4) Pursuant to Government Code 3 1641.03, to provide, effective October 4, 2001, should
employees not wish to participate in the Sick Leave Bank Program at retirement, the
conversion of sick leave accumulated as of the date of retirement toward additional
retirement service credit on an hour-for-hour basis.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire
Protection District this_10th_day of September, 2001 by the following vote:

el

SnyvEa Chcwernis
AYES: & Fieepy Mccmrz'n?
Seolae,

E/district correspondencafretirement resolutions



==
STAFF REPORT
Agenda Item 9.4
. Memorandum of Understanding 2022 — 2023
Subject: Monetary items Disclosure
Meeting Date: July 11, 2018
From: Eric Walder, Fire Chief
Prepared by: Eric Walder, Fire Chief ]
I RECOMMENDATION:

Action to approve the negotiated Memorandum of Understanding with Waterloo Morada
Firefirefighter's IAFF Local 1243

i BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:

The Board and Local have come to a tentative contract agreement. The increase in salary
and benefits are as follows:

As defined by the San Joaquin County Retirement Association (SJCERA) the below items
constitute a pensionable pay increase.

1, Effective July 1, 2022, a 4% Wage Increase
2. Effective July 1, 2023, a 4% Wage Increase

Per SUICERA an actuarial of the impact to the Districts unfunded Liability across the total
retirement plan due to the negotiated increases was conducted by SICERA'’s contracted
Actuary. This Actuarial report was first presented to the WMFD Board of Directors at the
June 2022 open public Board meeting. Overtime these negotiated increases will increase
the Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) by approximately of $67,000.



Classic Virlues, Innavarive Advice

Via Electronic Mail
June 3, 2022

Ms. Johanna Shick

Chief Executive Officer

San Joaquin County Employees’ Retirement Association
6 El Dorado Street, Suite 700

Stockton, CA 95202

Re:  Impact to SICERA Jrom the Waterloo Morada Fire District Salary Agreement
Dear Ms. Shick:

Pursuant to Section 31515.5 of the California Government Code, the Waterloo Morada Fire
District has requested an actuarial analysis be prepared on the impact to the San Joaquin County
Employees’ Retirement Association (SJICERA) from cost-of-living (COLA) adjustments that will
be granted in 2022 and 2023 to the District’s Firefighter’s Unit.

Our analysis includes cost-of- living increases of 4% effective July 1, 2022, and 4% effective
July 1, 2023, as provided by the Waterloo Morada Fire District.

employees, these increases will result in a total increase in pensionable compensation above the
amount assumed for 2022-2023 under the current actuarial assumptions (i.e., 3.00% annual general
wage growth).

Based on the results of the J anuary 1, 2021 actuarial valuation, we estimate that the total impact
of the pay increases outlined above would be an increase of approximately $67,000 in the Plan’s
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) of $5,207.7 million. Since the salary increases are not expected
to take effect until after January 1, 2022, this increase in liabilities would first be reflected in the
January 1, 2023 actuarial valuation, rather than the most recently completed valuation. However,
if we were to add the total expected impact of the salary increases to the Actuarial Accrued
Liability as of January 1, 2021, it would reduce the funded ratio by 0.001%, from 66.967% to
66.966%.

As required by Section 31515 .5, this analysis discloses the estimated impact on SJICERA’s funded
status. It does not analyze the impact on the Plan’s normal cost, member contributions, or employer
contributions. Salary increases above the level expected should result in higher contributions than
expected; however, the impact on the employer contribution rate may be minimal and may actually
result in a reduction in the rate — since the payroll base used to amortize the unfunded liability will
be higher.

www cheiron.us  1.877 CHEIRON {243 4766)



Ms. Johanna Shick
June 3, 2022
Page 2

We note that the number of Waterloo Morada Fire District members included in the January 1,
2021 actuarial valuation is 20 active members. If more positions are filled, the impact on the
required contributions may increase, but it is not expected to have an impact on the funded ratio
of the Plan, since new hires do not enter the Plan with an AAL.

In preparing our letter, we relied on information (some oral and some written) supplied by the
District and SICERA. This information includes, but is not limited to, demographic information
for the Waterloo Morada Fire District members and details on the tentative agreement. We
performed an informal examination of the obvious characteristics of the data for reasonableness
and consistency in accordance with Actuarial Standard of Practice No. 23. The data and actuarial
assumptions used (unless modified within this letter) are described in our J. anuary 1, 2021 actuarial
valuation report.

Future results may differ significantly from the current results presented in this letter due to such
factors as the following: plan experience different from that anticipated by the assumptions;
changes in assumptions; and, changes in plan provisions or applicable law.

Cheiron utilizes ProVal actuarial valuation software leased from Winklevoss Technologies
(WinTech) to calculate liabilities and project benefit payments. We have relied on WinTech as the
developer of ProVal. We have a basic understanding of ProVal and have used ProVal in
accordance with its original intended purpose. We have not identified any material inconsistencies
in assumptions or output of ProVal that would affect this valuation.

This letter and its contents have been prepared in accordance with generally recognized and
accepted actuarial principles and practices which are consistent with the Code of Professional
Conduct and applicable Actuarial Standards of Practice set out by the Actuarial Standards Board
as well as applicable laws and regulations. Furthermore, as credentialed actuaries, we meet the
Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to render the opinion contained in
this letter. This letter does not address any contractual or legal issues. We are not attorneys and
our firm does not provide any legal services or advice.

Finally, this letter was prepared for the Waterloo Morada F ire District and SJCERA for the purpose
described herein. This letter is not intended to benefit any third party, and Cheiron assumes no
duty or liability to any such party.

Sincerely,

Cheiron

C 2 €474 Q/IMJL_,

Grabam A. Schmidt, ASA, EA, FCA, MAAA Anne D. Harper, FSA, EA, MAAA
Consulting Actuary Principal Consulting Actuary

~CHEIRON &



0./

WATERLOO MORADA FIRE DISTRICT

6925 E Foppiano Lane

Stockton, CA 95212
(209) 931-3107

July 13, 2022

Jerome C. Wilverding

San Joaquin County Auditor Controller
44 North San Joaquin Street Suite 550
Stockton, CA 95202

Re: Special Assessment (Measure N 2019)

Please set the following rates for the 2022-2023 Override Tax.
Levied at the rate listed below:

Residential Dwelling: $0.07 cents per square feet of bldg. area
Commercial Residential: $0.07 cents per square feet of bldg. area
Commercial, Industrial $0.10 per square feet of bldg. area

Vacant Residential, parking lot, agricultural ~ $12.00 per parcel

Vacant Commercial $35.00 per parcel

Vacant Industrial *

I . 0.01 acre to 10 acres $50.00 per parcel

2 . 10.01 acres to 20 acres $75.00 per parcel

3 . 20.01 acres or greater $125.00 per parcel
Gas Wells: $25.00 per component
State Board of Equalization * $10.00 per acre unit
Mobile Home Residential Lots $20.00 per parcel

* Each lot shall be rounded up to the next even acre; 1.01 acres equal 2 acres, 2.65 acres
equal 3 acres, etc..

Thank You,

Clay Titus — President
Waterloo Morada Fire District




WATERLOO MORADA FIRE DISTRICT
6925 E Foppiano Lane

Stockton, CA 95212
(209) 931-3107

July 13, 2022

Jerome C. Wilverding

San Joaquin County Auditor Controller
44 North San Joaquin Street Suite 550
Stockton, CA 95202

Re: 1986 Special Assessment

Please set the following rates for the 2022-2023 Override Tax.

Residential Dwelling; 3 cents per square foot
Commercial Residential: 4 cents per square foot
Commercial: 6 cents per square foot
Industry: 6 cents per square foot
Vacant Residential Lots: $ 12.00 per fiscal year
Vacant Commercial Lots: $ 35.00 per fiscal year
Vacant Industrial Lots:

1. .01 acre to 10 acres $ 50.00 per fiscal year
2. 10.01 acres to 20 acres $ 75.00 per fiscal year
3.20.01 acres or greater $125.00 per fiscal year
Gas Wells: $ 25.00 per fiscal year
State Board of Equalization: $ 10.00 per acre unit per fiscal year *i.e.
Mobile Home Residential Lots: $ 20.00 per fiscal year

* Each lot shall be rounded up to the next even acre; 1.01 acres equal 2 acres, 2.65 acres
equal 3 acres, etc..

Thank You,

Clay Titus — President
Waterloo Morada Fire District




SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY SPECIAL ASSESSMENT CHARGE AGREEMENT WITH
WATERLOO MORADA FIRE DISTRICT

DATE: July 13, 2022

PARTIES: COUNTY: COUNTY OF SAN J OAQUIN
Auditor -Controller
44 North San Joaquin
Street Suite 550
Stockton, CA 95202

DISTRICT: WATERLOO MORADA FIRE DISTRICT
Name: Fire Chief Eric Walder
Address: 6925 E. Foppiano Lane

Stockton, CA 95212

AGREEMENT:
The County and the above-mentioned District agree as follows:

assessment on a parcel, whichever is less, for the collection of special assessments
or special assessment taxes.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this agreement the year and date
first written above.

COUNTY OF SAN JOAQUIN WATERLOO MORADA FIRE DISTRICT
B %qu By
Jerome C. Wilverding Clay Titus Board President
Auditor -Controller

"COUNTY" "DISTRICT"

DA Fee Agreement



/0.2

CROCE, SANGUINETTI, & VANDER VEEN
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

June 22, 2022

Board of Directors and Chief Walder

Waterloo Morada Rural County
Fire Protection District

6925 East Foppiano Lane

Stockton, California 95212

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Waterloo Morada
Rural County Fire Protection District for the year ending June 30, 2022.

Audit Scope and Objectives

I. Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

2. Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actua]

3. Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability.

4. Schedule of Contributions,

20 BROOKSIDE ROAD, SUITE 141 | STOCKTON, CA 95219




The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion about whether your financial statements are fairly
presented, in all material respects, in conformity with GAAP. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
Judgment of a reasonable user made based on the financial statements.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS and will include tests of your accounting
records and other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. As part
of an audit in accordance with GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management. We will also evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and determine whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of materia] misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent
financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental
regulations that are attributable to the government or to acts by management or employees acting
on behalf of the government.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal
control, and because we will not perform a detailed examination of a]] transactions, there is an
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected by us, even though the
audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS. In addition, an audit is not
designed to detect immaterial misstatements, or violations of laws or governmental regulations
that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, we will inform
the appropriate level of management of any material errors, fraudulent financial reporting or
misappropriation of assets that comes to our attention. We will also inform the appropriate level
of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come to our attention,
unless clearly inconsequential. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by
our audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.

We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded
in the accounts, and may include direct confirmation of cash and certain other assets and liabilities
by correspondence with selected customers, creditors, and financial institutions. We may request
written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you for
responding to this inquiry.

Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you of your responsibilities.



Audit Procedures - Internal Control

We will obtain an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal control
relevant to the audit, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks and obtain evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinions. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentation, or the override of internal control. An audit is not designed to provide assurance
on internal control or to identify deficiencies in internal control. Accordingly, we will express no
such opinion. However, during the audit, we will communicate to management and those charged
with governance internal control related matters that are required to be communicated under
AICPA professional standards.

Audit Procedures - Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we will perform tests of Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire Protection
District’s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and
agreements. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall
compliance and we will not express such an opinion.

Other Services

We will also prepare standard, adjusting, or correcting journal entries and assist in preparing the
financial statements of Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire Protection District in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles based on information provided by you. We will
also prepare the Special Districts Financial Transactions Report of Waterloo Morada Rural
County Fire Protection District. We will perform the services in accordance with applicable
professional standards. The other services are limited to the services previously defined. We, in
our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any
action that could be construed as assuming management responsibilities.

You agree to assume all management responsibilities for any nonattest services we provide;
oversee the services by designating an individual, preferably from senior management, with
suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of the services; and
accept responsibility for them.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility
for designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, including monitoring ongoing activities; for the selection and application of accounting
principles; and for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America with the oversight
of those charged with governance.



Management is also responsible for making drafts of financial statements, all financial records and
related information available to us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information
(including information from outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers). You are also
responsible for providing us with access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records documenting
identification of all related parties and all related-party relationships and transactions and other
matters, additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit, and unrestricted
access to persons within the government from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit
evidence. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain written representations from you
about the financial statements and related matters.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements
and confirming to us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected
misstatements aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period
presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements of each
opinion unit taken as a whole.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and
detect fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government
involving management, employees who have significant roles in internal control, and others where
the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include
informing us of your knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the
government received in communications from employees, former employees, regulators, or others.
In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with
applicable laws and regulations.

With regard to using the auditor’s report, you understand that you must obtain our prior written
consent to reproduce or use our report in bond offering official statements or other documents.

With regard to publishing the financial statements on your website, you understand that websites
are a means to distribute information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information
contained in those sites or to consider the consistency of other information on the website with the
original document.

Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other

Pauline Sanguinetti is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement
and signing the report or authorizing another individual to sign it. Our audit engagement ends on
delivery of our audit report. Any follow-up services that might be required will be a separate, new
engagement. The terms and conditions of that new engagement will be governed by a new, specific
engagement letter for that service.

It is our policy to keep records related to this engagement for seven years. However, Croce,
Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc. does not keep any original client records, so we will return those
to you at the completion of the services rendered under this engagement. When records are returned
to you, it is your responsibility to retain and protect your records for possible future use, including
potential examination by government or regulatory agencies. By your signature below, you
acknowledge and agree that upon the expiration of the seven-year period, Croce, Sanguinetti, &
Vander Veen, Inc. shall be free to destroy our records related to this engagement.



We expect our fees for the audit services set forth in this letter for the year ending June 30, 2022
to not exceed $12,100. Our invoices for the services outlined in this letter are payable on
presentation. The fee estimate is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the
assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant
additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we
incur the additional costs.

You may request that we perform additional services not addressed in this engagement letter. If
this occurs, we will communicate with you regarding the scope of the additional services and the
estimated fees. We also may issue a separate engagement letter covering the additional services.
In the absence of any other written communication from us documenting such additional services,
our services will continue to be governed by the terms of this engagement letter.

In the event that the District requires a single audit due to the expenditure of federal funds, we will
perform such an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, and the provisions of the
Uniform Guidance. Services rendered in order to meet the aforementioned requirements will be
billed to you separately.

Should any litigation or adverse action (such as audits by outside organizations and/or threatened
litigation, etc.) by third parties arise against Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire Protection
District or its officers subsequent to this engagement, which results in the subpoena of documents
from Croce, Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc. and/or requires additional assistance from us to
provide information, depositions, or testimony, Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire
Protection District hereby agrees to compensate Croce, Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc. (at our
standard hourly rates then in effect) for additional time charges and other costs (copies, travel, etc.)
and to indemnify us for any attorney’s fees to represent Croce, Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc.

If any dispute arises among the parties hereto, the parties agree to first try in good faith to settle
the dispute by mediation administered by the American Arbitration Association or other
organization under its applicable rules for resolving professional accounting and related services
disputes before resorting to litigation. The costs of any mediation proceeding shall be shared
equally by all parties.

Reporting

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit Waterloo Morada Rural County
Fire Protection District’s financial statements. Qur report will be addressed to those charged with
governance of Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire Protection District. Circumstances may
arise in which our report may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of our
audit. Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our
opinions, add a separate section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph to our
auditor’s report, or if necessary, withdraw from this engagement. If our opinions are other than
unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to
complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may decline to express
opinions or withdraw from this engagement.



If circumstances occur related to the condition of your records, the availability of sufficient,
appropriate audit evidence, or the existence of a significant risk of material misstatement of the
financial statements caused by error, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets,
which in our professional judgment prevent us from completing the audit or forming an opinion
on the financial statements, we retain the right to take any course of action permitted by
professional standards, including declining to express an opinion or issue a report, or withdrawing
from the engagement.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire
Protection District and believe this letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of our
engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms of our
engagement as described in this letter, please sign where indicated and return it to us. A copy of
this engagement letter is enclosed for your files.

Very truly yours,

Croce, Sa.-ﬂ;,wd‘h, ¢ Vander Vun, Inc.,

CROCE, SANGUINETTI, & VANDER VEEN, INC.

Certified Public Accountants

RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire

Protection District.

Chief signature: ﬁ

Title:

Date:

Director signature: \[,f

Title:

Date:




0.2

|

CROCE, SANGUINETTI, & VANDER VEEN
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

June 22, 2022

Board of Directors and Chief Walder

Waterloo Morada Rural County
Fire Protection District

6925 East Foppiano Lane

Stockton, California 95212

We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and understanding of the services we are to provide
for Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire Protection District for the year ending June 30,
2022.

You have requested that we prepare the Special Districts Financial Transactions Report of
Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire Protection District for the year ending June 30, 2022.

Our Responsibilities

The objective of our engagement is to prepare the Special Districts Financial Transactions
Report in accordance with the requirements of the Controller of the State of California, which
differ from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We will
conduct our engagement in accordance with Statement on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services (SSARS) promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the
AICPA and comply with the AICPA’s Code of Professional Conduct, including the ethical
principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence, and due care.

We are not required to, and will not, verify the accuracy or completeness of the information you
will provide to us for the engagement or otherwise gather evidence for the purpose of expressing
an opinion or a conclusion. Accordingly, we will not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor
provide any assurance on the Special Districts Financial Transactions Report.

Our engagement cannot be relied upon to identify or disclose any misstatements, including those
caused by fraud or error, or to identify or disclose any wrongdoing within the entity or
noncompliance with laws and regulations.

Management Responsibilities

The engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that management acknowledges and
understands that our role is to prepare the Special Districts Financial Transactions Report in
accordance with the requirements of the Controller of the State of California. Management has
the following overall responsibilities that are fundamental to our undertaking the engagement
to prepare your Special Districts Financial Transactions Report in accordance with SSARS:

a. The prevention and detection of fraud.

b. To ensure that the entity complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its
activities.

594-1250 FAX | CSVCPAS.C

3520 BROOKSIDE ROAD, SUITE 141 | STOCKTON, CA 95219 | (209)938-1010 | (209



¢. The accuracy and completeness of the records, documents, explanations, and other
information, including significant judgments, you provide to us for the engagement to
prepare the Special Districts Financial Transactions Report.

d. To provide us with:

i. Documentation, and other related information that is relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the Special Districts Financial Transactions Report,

ii. Additional information that may be requested for the purpose of the preparation
of the Special Districts Financial Transactions Report; and

iii. Unrestricted access to persons within Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire
Protection District of whom we determine necessary to communicate.

As part of our engagement, we will issue a disclaimer that will state that the Special Districts
Financial Transactions Report was not subjected to an audit, review, or compilation
engagement by us and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion, conclusion, nor provide any
assurance on them.

Other Relevant Information
Pauline Sanguinetti is responsible for supervising the engagement.

We expect our fees for the services set forth in this letter for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022
not to exceed $650. Our invoices for the services outlined in this letter are payable on
presentation. The fee estimate is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the
assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the engagement. If
significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee
estimate before we incur the additional costs.

It is our policy to keep records related to this engagement for seven years. However, Croce,
Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc. does not keep any original client records, so we will return
those to you at the completion of the services rendered under this engagement. When records are
returned to you, it is your responsibility to retain and protect your records for possible future use,
including potential examination by government or regulatory agencies. By your signature below,
you acknowledge and agree that upon the expiration of the seven-year period, Croce,
Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc. shall be free to destroy our records related to this engagement.

Should any litigation or adverse action (such as audits by outside organizations and/or threatened
litigation, etc.) by third parties arise against Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire Protection
District or its officers subsequent to this engagement, which results in the subpoena of
documents from Croce, Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc. and/or requires additional assistance
from us to provide information, depositions, or testimony, Waterloo Morada Rural County
Fire Protection District hereby agrees to compensate Croce, Sanguinetti, & Vander Veen, Inc.
(at our standard hourly rates then in effect) for additional time charges and other costs (copies,
travel, etc.) and to indemnify us for any attorney’s fees to represent Croce, Sanguinetti, &
Vander Veen, Inc.



If any dispute arises among the parties hereto, the parties agree to first try in good faith to settle
the dispute by mediation administered by the American Arbitration Association or other
organization under its applicable rules for professional accounting and related services disputes
before resorting to litigation. The costs of any mediation proceeding shall be shared equally by
all parties.

You agree to hold us harmless and to release, indemnify, and defend us from any liability or
costs, including attorney’s fees, resulting from management’s knowing misrepresentations to us,

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire
Protection District and believe this letter accurately summarizes the significant terms of our
engagement. If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms of our
engagement as described in this letter, please sign where indicated and return it to us. A copy of
this engagement letter is enclosed for your files.

Very truly yours,

C(DC,e, SArﬂ,w\N_H‘t, ¢ Vander V&n . Inc.

CROCE, SANGUINETTI, & VANDER VEEN, INC.

Certified Public Accountants

RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire

Protection District.

Chief signature: K

Title:

Date:

Director signature: \F

Title:

Date;




/0.3

O - S - - it -y - a B e ——

F&M

.

Waterloo Morada Rural
County Fire District

July 1, 2022

Presented
By

Katie Alves, VP Relationship Manager
Twyla Brooks, VP Retail Branch Manager

CONFIDENTIAL

Information contained in this proposal is proprietary to F&M Bank and may not be reproduced or
redistributed without prior written consent of F&M Bank. !




&

EXPRESSION OF INTEREST LETTER

July 1, 2022

Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire District
6925 E. Foppiano Lane
Stockton, CA. 95212

Dear Board of Directors,

Since 1916 F&M Bank has helped make banking easy for our clients. As a locally owned
and operated community focused financial institution, we have a proud history of
providing innovative products and services delivered with the highest possible level of
customer service. We are very pleased to have the opportunity to provide this Expression
of Interest letter and to show how F&M Bank can make banking easy for you.

F&M Bank has assembled a team of professionals led by Kent Steinwert, President, CEO and
Chairman, to support your banking needs. This team will go out of their way to marshal the
resources of F&M Bank to ensure you receive service beyond your expectations.

What follows is a proposal for the banking needs of Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire
District. This proposal comes with our commitment to provide personalized service
delivered by a relationship team, as wells as direct access to F&M Bank’s Senior
Management at 121 West Pine St., Lodi, CA 95240.

Again, we appreciate this opportunity and look forward to becoming your bank.

Sincerely,
l& o9Ye NEITVY
atie Alves Twyla Brooks
VP, Relationship Manger VP, Branch Manager
= . . S TE 2 Y L SR ST T TS em "k i
Farmers & Merchants Bank of F&M Member ﬁ%éll 6

Central California  fmbonline.com FDIC {oNBy



CREDIT PROPOSAL

CI_ZEEI'I;FA_CEITLESE Op_e:raging_ I_.ir_re_qf Credit

Borrower: Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire District or Assignee

Type: Revolving Line of Credit

Loan Amount; $500,000

Loan Purpose: Cash advances, including direct deposits jnto your checking
account.

Collateral: Unsecured

Interest Rate: The Bank’s Base Rate plus 0.50%, as such Base Rate changes from

time to time, but with a minimum rate of 5.25%. Changes in the
interest rate are to become effective on the same day as the
Bank’s Base Rate changes.
As of the date of this proposal, the Bank’s Base rate is 4.75%.
The Bank'’s Base Rate is the Prime Rates as defined when first
published in the Wall Street Journal, Western Edition as such
Prime Rate changes from time to time.

Loan Fee: $0

Repayment: Interest payable monthly with all accrued interest and unpaid
principal to be due at maturity.

Amortization Period: Non-Amortizing

Maturity: 12 Months

- = —_—

o mr—pirresms 3

O T RE—

Farmers & Merchants Bank of F& ﬁﬁ Member , EQUAL
Central California ¢ fmbonline.com FDIC ['gNUDSEIgG



_Other Coqcﬂt_igqs:

OTHER CONDITIONS

1. Tax Returns and CPA Prepared Financial Statements will be required for Borrower
annually. Tax Returns will be collected within 30 days of filing and CPA Prepared
Financial Statements will be collected 180 days from fiscal year-end.

2. Resolution Authorizing the Waterloo Morada Rural County Fire District to Borrow
Money and Incur Indebtedness shall be required.

3. Interest payments shall be automatically debited from an F&M Bank checking account.
4, Fire District shall continue to maintain its primary depository relationship with the
Bank.
5. Additional covenants and/or conditions may be required.
e ca. . s ...4 ST uTEm e mmvemgn e s 9
Farmers & Merchants Bank of F&M Member @ EQUAéILN
Central California « fmbonline.com FDIC fobNe



As stated herein, this proposal is for discussion purposes only and does not constitute a
commitment. Any future commitment of credit is subject to the Bank’s receipt and further
evaluation of the borrower’s application, financial information, credit history and such
other information that may be requested by the Bank. Ultimately, credit commitments may
require approval from the Bank’s Board of Directors. If any credit is subsequently
committed by the Bank, you would be required to execute documentation that is in a form
and in substance satisfactory to the Bank. Subsequent documentation may include terms
and conditions that are different from or in addition to those that are stated in this letter.
For example, these terms may include various warranties, representations and covenants
regarding financial conditions. Any pre-closing conditions stated in the loan documents
would have to be met prior to funding,

This proposal will expire on 8/15/2022
If these terms are acceptable to you and you wish for lender to proceed with underwriting
and seeking formal approval of the proposed loan, please sign and return this Expression of

Interest letter.

Thank you for the opportunity to present our credit proposal. Upon acceptance, please
sign and return the original to one of the undersigned.

jz - @(/L/L/(,L - @\Mx

Katie Alves Twyla Brooks
VP and Relationship Manager VP and Retail Branch Manager
Acceptance:

By: Board of Director

By: Board of Director

Information contained in this proposal is proprietary to F&M Bank and may not be reproduced or
redistributed without prior written consent of F&M Bank.

P—— " e 5 amnas o, samizazs s g

Farmers & Merchants Bank of F&M Member ’E'%tlljéllNG
Central California « fmbonline.com FDIC LENDER



o WATERLOO MORADA FIRE DISTRICT Jun
MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 20:

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS

Type of Calls Response Times

_\r-3,1% 40

" 2,1%

® 35,13% _
35

v 18,7%
\\
’ 5’2%\

" 22,8% >

; , 40, 15% 30
g = Structure 25
3 S = Vehicle
i . 20
! Vegetation
y Other 15
= EMS 10
= MVA

» Hazard 5 I

" 115,42% S = Service 0

u False Alarm <2min 2-3min 3-4min 4-5min  5-6 min 6-7min  7-8min > 8 min
Incidents Month YTD Prevention Month YTD Training
S 3 Business Inspections 2 50 Month 111
Emergency Response - Lights and Siren Incidents Fire Permits Issued 36 112 YTD 1416
]gation Incidents Avg Resp Time Total Inc_l Public Education 2 6
1 119 6:38 44% Children 0 170 Response by
2 66 6:10 24% Adults 0 71
A 92
Non-Emergency This Month YTD Dollar Loss Monthly YTD B 102
Amount of Responses 26 277 Property $ 581,875 $ 1,094,275 c 77
Contents $ 300,300 $ 365,250
Response by Unit
I E15-1 E15-2 E15-3 BR15-1 WT15-1 BC15 CH15-1 OES 4122—| | Total ||
156 141 6 51 2 48 2 406
Stacked Calls This Month YTD Aid Given/Received  This Month YTD Homeless Related
Incidents 85 266 Given 20 149 Month 47
Percentage 31% 19% Received 36 96 YTD 274
20%
Incidents by Day of Week Incidents by Time of Day
40
s 35 l I l
30 A }' .
25 1 [ i . |,
37 38 = 37 | | ‘ ] J
33 32 20 j .' ! :
“Unll U ’ | JM |
*UIH M LD
HHREHRRIHE N
o 11 . N I
e°°§\ @"y < d z*‘é@ «‘\&"é ““&* %f*\ @\b”?’ 'v@@ w@@ & & * °$°i° °WQ& o »*’Q@ o 9‘*& «9‘*@

Data collected during calendar year 0” COMM'LZQ/. .o 0” Prior[g’



_ WATERLOO MORADA FIRE DISTRICT
@ MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT

VALLEY DAK

o

easgar

%cident@;gg;;g |
_ STA\ *

- [ ] -
Zone 1 33
Zone 2 11
Zone 3 56
Zone 4 89
Zone 6 26
Zone7 22
Zone 8 8

Data collected during calendar year 0” Comm‘:g/" - 0” Pr[or[g,

June
2022



